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Savanna Energy Services Corp. is a drilling, well servicing and oilfield rentals 

company with operations in Canada, the United States and Australia. 

Savanna is committed to providing equipment and technologies that 

anticipate and exceed its customers’ needs.  

 

Based in Calgary, Alberta, Savanna Energy Services Corp. (“Savanna” or “the Company”) also has corporate offices in 
Houston, Texas and Brisbane, Australia, as well as several field offices in Canada, the United States, and Australia. The 
Company’s overall business is conducted through two major divisions: contract drilling and oilfield services. The Company 
continues to build a strong presence within the oilfield services sector in every geography in which it operates. Savanna 
operates through a number of wholly-owned subsidiaries and several partnerships with Aboriginal communities that are 
partially owned by the Company.  

 

 

 

This management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) is dated March 4, 2015. 

This MD&A focuses on key items from the consolidated financial statements of Savanna for the years ended December 31, 
2014 and 2013, which have been prepared by management in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”) and are presented in Canadian dollars. This discussion should not be considered all-inclusive as it excludes changes 
that may occur in general economic, political and environmental conditions.  Additionally, other matters may occur which 
could affect the Company in the future.  

This MD&A should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements and the related notes 
for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, as well as the Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking 
Information and Statements found at the end of this MD&A. Additional information regarding the Company, including the 
Company’s Annual Information Form, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. 
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Financial Highlights 

The following is a summary of selected financial information of the Company: 

(Stated in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)   

For the years ended December 31  2014   2013  2012 

OPERATING RESULTS       

Revenue     791,890   696,609  688,154 

Operating expenses     576,713   494,949  485,343 

Operating margin(1)     215,177   201,660  202,811 

Operating margin %(1)    27% 29% 29%

EBITDAS(1)     157,885   150,896  157,426 

Attributable to shareholders of the Company     150,610   146,036  152,026 

Per share: diluted     1.69   1.67  1.77 

Impairment losses, net of tax     (281,914)  -   (5,015)

Per share: diluted     (3.16)  -   (0.06)

Net earnings (loss)     (252,025)  33,936  41,886 

Attributable to shareholders of the Company     (249,308)  30,243  37,784 

Per share: diluted     (2.79)  0.35  0.44 

       

CASH FLOWS       

Operating cash flows(1)     146,488   137,593  141,381 

Per share: diluted     1.64   1.58  1.65 

Acquisition of capital assets(1)     247,841   124,870  187,803 

Proceeds on disposal of capital assets     1,536   5,589  11,136 

Dividends paid     24,057   22,628  15,792 

       

FINANCIAL POSITION AT DECEMBER 31     2014   2013  2012 

Working capital(1)     76,040   86,398  94,125 

Capital assets(1)     946,578   1,186,252  1,145,554 

Total assets     1,183,925   1,391,602  1,338,489 

Long-term debt     350,615   246,568  249,938 

 
 

NOTES:  
(1)  Operating margin, operating margin percentage, EBITDAS, impairment losses, net of tax and operating cash flows are not recognized measures under IFRS, and are 

unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. Reconciliations of these non-IFRS measures to the IFRS measures reported in the 

Company’s consolidated financial statements are detailed later in this MD&A under the heading “Non-IFRS measures”.  

Management believes that, in addition to net earnings, the measures described above are useful in assessing the Company’s performance as they provide an 

indication of the results generated by the Company’s principal business activities both prior to and after consideration of how those activities are financed, the effect 

of foreign exchange, the effect of non-cash impairment losses and how the results are taxed in various jurisdictions. Similarly, capital assets, working capital, and net 

debt are not recognized measures under IFRS; however, management believes that these measures are useful as they provide an indication of the Company’s 

investment in operating assets, liquidity and leverage.  

 Operating margin is defined as revenue less operating expenses.   

 Operating margin percentage is defined as revenue less operating expenses divided by revenue. 

 EBITDAS is defined as earnings before finance expenses, income taxes, depreciation, amortization, impairment losses and share-based compensation and 

excludes other expenses (income). 

 Impairment losses, net of tax are impairment losses net of the deferred tax effect thereon. The tax effect is determined based on the change in the temporary 

differences between the carrying amount of the impaired asset and its tax base, at the effective tax rate for the tax jurisdiction in which the assets resides.   

 Operating cash flows are defined as cash flows from operating activities before changes in non-cash working capital.   

 Capital assets are defined as property, equipment and intangible assets. 
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 The acquisition of capital assets includes the purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets, capital assets acquired through business acquisitions and 

non-cash capital asset additions. 

 Working capital is defined as total current assets less total current liabilities excluding the current portions of long-term debt.  

 Net debt is defined as long-term debt, including the current portions thereof and excluding unamortized debt issue costs, less working capital as defined above. 

 

(2)  Certain industry related terms used in this MD&A are defined or clarified as follows:  

 Savanna reports its drilling rig utilization based on spud to release time for its operational drilling rigs and excludes moving, rig up and tear down time, even 

though revenue may be earned during this time. Source of Canadian industry average utilization figures: Canadian Association of Oilwell Drilling Contractors 

(“CAODC”). Industry utilization figures are calculated in the same manner as the Company. To segregate industry utilization by rig type, industry totals by well 

depth range are used. 

 Savanna reports its service rig utilization for its operational service rigs in North America based on standard hours of 3,650 per rig per year. Utilization for 

Savanna’s service rigs in Australia is calculated based on standard hours of 8,760 per rig per year to reflect 24 hour operating conditions in that country. 

Reliable industry average utilization figures, specific to well servicing, are not available. 

 The words single, double or triple, in reference to Savanna’s drilling rigs or service rigs, are standard industry terms and are an indication of the size of the rig 

and its depth capacity. Specifically, these categories refer to the number of lengths of drill pipe that can stand in the rig’s derrick which has a direct correlation to 

the depth of the well that a rig can drill or service. Generally, single rigs are smaller and drill or service relatively shallow wells, while double and triple rigs are 

larger and drill or service progressively deeper wells. Depth capacity is also directly impacted by the hook load, draw works, and pump capacity of the rigs, so 

designation as single, double or triple, while helpful in assessing depth capacity, is by no means determinative.   

  

 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2014 COMPARED TO 2013 
2014 was a record year for Savanna in terms of revenue, operating margins and EBITDAS. The capital and operating 
initiatives of the last several years diversified and enhanced the Company’s service offerings and expanded its geographic 
reach. This allowed Savanna to generate higher revenue, operating margins and EBITDAS than ever before. Savanna also just 
finalized its largest organic capital expansion in its history and the capital outlaid toward this expansion over the last 18 months 
began to generate returns in Q4 2014. 

Increases in Savanna’s long-reach drilling utilization in Canada in 2014 resulted in a $45.7 million increase in revenue and a 
$14.7 million increase in operating margin relative to 2013. The utilization increases were in part a result of the capital spent 
on increasing the operating and depth capacity of the fleet over the last several years. The 17% increase in operating margin 
more than offset revenue and operating margin decreases in Canadian shallow drilling, well servicing and rentals, caused by 
lower activity and rates. As a result, overall operating margin in Canada increased by $7.3 million, or 6%, compared to 2013. 

The scale of Savanna’s Australian operations increased in 2014 relative to 2013. Savanna operated an additional drilling rig 
throughout 2014, and commenced operations on half of the eight new-build rigs deployed to the region’s well servicing 
division in the last few months of the year. The additional drilling and service rigs resulted in a $27.1 million, or 24%, increase 
in revenue and a $5.6 million, or 27%, increase in operating margin from Australia in 2014 compared to 2013.  

In Savanna’s U.S. well servicing division, operating hours and revenue increased based on Savanna’s strategy of redeploying 
idle Canadian service rigs to the U.S. An increase in active rigs relative to 2013, combined with higher year-over-year pricing, 
resulted in an $8.7 million, or 45%, increase in revenue and a $4.2 million, or 51%, increase in operating margin in 2014. 
Conversely, in U.S. drilling, lower base day rates combined with higher per day operating costs resulted in a 7% decrease in 
operating margin relative to 2013. Despite the decrease in operating margin compared to last year, the U.S. drilling operation 
did show considerable improvements in the second half of 2014, based on cost control initiatives.  U.S. drilling operating 
margins were $5.9 million, or 25%, lower in the first half of 2014 than in the first half of 2013. In the second half of 2014, 
operating margins were $2.8 million, or 13%, higher compared to the second half of 2013. 
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Overall for the year, operating margin increases in Canadian long-reach drilling, U.S. well servicing, and Australia led to a 
$7.6 million, or 5%, increase in EBITDAS relative to 2013.  

 

Based on the sharp decrease in the price of oil in the months preceding and following the end of the year and the significant 
degree of uncertainty regarding oil and natural gas activity and pricing for the remainder of 2015 and into 2016, Savanna has 
undergone an extensive review of its strategies, operating structure, and legacy asset base. As a result of this review, and given 
the significant uncertainty facing the oilfield services business, the Company determined to consolidate a number of its field 
locations as well as retire a number of assets from its active fleet. These field locations and certain assets, while economic and 
active at commodity pricing and activity levels that existed through most of 2014, may become challenged in a prolonged low 
commodity price and reduced oilfield services activity environment. In addition, the Company conducted impairment tests at 
September 30 and December 31, 2014, on a higher of fair value less cost to sell, and value-in-use basis. The outcome of these 
tests, together with the asset retirements noted above, resulted in impairment losses of $383.6 million on property and 
equipment and $10.3 million on goodwill and intangible assets. 

In 2014, compared to 2013, Savanna also experienced higher depreciation, based on a combination of higher activity levels and 
an increase in the value of assets depreciated on a straight-line basis. The higher depreciation, combined with the $393.9 
million of impairment losses ($281.9 million net of taxes), resulted in a significant decrease in net earnings in 2014 compared 
to 2013 despite improved aggregate EBITDAS overall.  
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2013 COMPARED TO 2012   
Activity in Australia accelerated throughout 2013, and was the primary driver for the year-over-year growth in revenue for 
Savanna. More importantly, the improved utilization and operating margins from Savanna’s Australian operations kept 
Savanna’s consolidated operating margins in-line with 2012. Overall operating margins from Australia totaled $20.6 million in 
2013, which is more than three times the total operating margins generated from Australia in 2012. These increases offset 
much of the negative effect of weaknesses in North American activity. 

In North America, overall economic uncertainty, pipeline capacity constraints in Canada, and continuing low natural gas 
prices, depressed oilfield service demand levels in 2013 relative to 2012. This led to lower utilization in both drilling and well 
servicing in Canada and the U.S., and decreased pricing on Savanna’s spot market drilling rigs. Despite these industry demand 
decreases, an increase in Savanna’s drilling utilization, driven by the refurbishment and retrofit initiatives of the last few years, 
and an increase in Canadian oilfield rentals revenue, partially mitigated the negative effect of widespread activity declines in 
North America in 2013 versus 2012. 

More specifically, in the U.S., a 9% decrease in combined drilling and well servicing activity and the costs associated with 
crewing incremental service rigs negatively affected operating margins. An increase in average per day revenue partially offset 
these decreases and as a result, in 2013, operating margins from Savanna’s U.S. operations decreased 3% relative to 2012.  

In Canada, lower relative pricing in 2013 compared to 2012, and a significant decrease in well servicing utilization, were the 
primary drivers for a decrease in overall operating margins year-over-year. These decreases were partially offset by an increase 
in the number of active drilling rigs deployed. A 31% increase in rentals revenue, driven by the Q4 2012 acquisition of oilfield 
accommodation buildings, also positively impacted operating margins. In aggregate, operating margins from Savanna’s 
operations in Canada decreased by 9% in 2013 compared to 2012.  

Higher overall general and administrative expenses, higher depreciation expenses, and higher finance expenses, also negatively 
impacted Savanna’s net earnings in 2013 relative to 2012.  

Savanna declared dividends totaling $31.3 million or $0.36 per share in 2013. 
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Progress on Key Initiatives   

Savanna’s key 2014 initiatives were described in the 2013 MD&A, which appears in the Company’s 2013 Annual Report. The 
following is an update on the progress made toward these initiatives in 2014: 

OPERATIONAL STRATEGIES  
 Long-term contracts entered into to deploy three new-build flush-by units to Australia. All of these units, along with two 

of five new-build workover rigs, contracted in 2013, commenced operations in Australia over the last five months; 
 Long-term contracts entered into to supply three new-build 1500 horsepower AC triple drilling rigs in the U.S. The first 

triple was deployed into the Permian basin in Texas in Q4 2014, the second was deployed into Colorado in Q1 2015, and 
the third will be deployed into Pennsylvania in Q2 2015;  

 Long-term contract entered into to supply a new-build 1200 horsepower ultra-heavy AC double drilling rig in Canada. The 
rig was deployed in Alberta in Q1 2015;  

 Plan to retrofit and transfer idle service rigs in Canada to North Dakota completed. Five rigs were transferred in 2014, 
resulting in 18 rigs in this market; 

 Upgraded the operating and depth capacity of the long-reach drilling fleet in Canada; and 
 Long-term contracts entered into to deploy four new-build top drive single (TDS) drilling rigs to Australia in 2016. In 

light of the sharp deterioration in market conditions post contracting, both Savanna and its customer agreed to cancel 
construction of these rigs until market conditions improve. 

  
TECHNOLOGY AND RIG BUILD STRATEGIES  
 Construction of five workover rigs and three flush-by units for Australia completed. All of these rigs were in Australia at 

the end of 2014 and half of them commenced operations in Q4 2014. Another commenced operations in Q1 2015 and the 
remaining three are expected to go to work in Q2 2015; 

 Construction of an ultra-heavy telescopic double AC drilling rig for Canada completed. This rig commenced operations in 
Q1 2015; 

 Construction of three VeloxTM triple drilling rigs for North America nearing completion. The first commenced operations 
in Q4 2014, the second in Q1 2015, and the third is set to commence operations in Q2 2015; and 

 Design of TDS drilling rigs for Australia complete. Construction cancelled. 

ABORIGINAL PARTNERSHIP STRATEGIES  
 Savanna’s partnership with Duncan’s First Nation acquired a service rig from Savanna in early 2014 to complement the 

drilling rig it already owned. Secured a $3 million term loan within this partnership to facilitate the acquisition; and 
 The Company’s partnership with Fort McKay First Nation secured a $14 million line of credit to facilitate anticipated 

future growth within the partnership. As of December 31, 2014, $6 million was drawn on the line, the proceeds of which 
were paid to Savanna in exchange for amounts owing on the two CT-1500 hybrid drilling rigs and two service rigs 
acquired in late 2013, plus rental equipment added in 2014. 

 
 
The Company’s key 2015 initiatives are described later in this MD&A under the heading “Outlook”. 
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Market Trends   

Savanna’s business depends significantly on the level of spending by oil and gas companies for exploration, development, 
production, and abandonment activities.  In addition to general economic conditions and expectations, sustained increases or 
decreases in the price of natural gas or oil materially impact such activities and could have a material impact on the Company's 
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows (see “Risks and Uncertainties” later in this MD&A and “Risk 
Factors” in the Company’s Annual Information Form). In recent years, pricing for both oil and natural gas has become more 
regional. As a result, the physical location of Savanna’s assets can result in localized commodity pricing trends having a 
significant impact on demand for the Company’s services in any particular region. Increasingly, technological and physical 
capacity and design of equipment is differentiating the suitability of drilling and oilfield services equipment to work on specific 
well profiles as well. 

Savanna’s business depends heavily on the nature of wells drilled by its customers, as well as their geographic focus. Dramatic 
shifts in well depths or geographic regions can, despite the mobility of drilling and well servicing equipment, temporarily 
disrupt the demand for Savanna’s services. These shifts can occur rapidly, requiring a corresponding shift in Savanna’s asset or 
geographic focus. Savanna continuously attempts to anticipate these shifts and address them. Over the past few years, Savanna 
has expended considerable capital and effort on repositioning its drilling and well servicing fleet into more active regions and 
in increasing the average depth and operational capacity of its drilling fleet. Additionally, recognizing the highly seasonal and 
cyclical nature of the Canadian oilfield services market, Savanna has also driven toward achieving a better balance between its 
Canadian business and operations in geographies outside of Canada. Savanna will continue to assess the long-term fit of 
various components of its capital asset base to unfolding market demand, and will manage its capital accordingly. 

Due to fluctuations in the prices for both oil and natural gas, the oil and gas industry is subject to significant volatility. Over the 
last few years, natural gas prices have remained relatively low. North American natural gas production is still high and, despite 
seasonal spikes in natural gas pricing, there remains a cautious outlook regarding the pricing of this commodity and the related 
oilfield services activity it drives. Oil prices, until recently, had remained relatively strong, generating a greater emphasis on 
oil-focused drilling, completion and maintenance activity. In the last six months oil prices have declined dramatically. This has 
generated a significant amount of uncertainty regarding near-term oil-focused activity. In addition, pipeline capacity issues in 
Canada continue to limit local pricing relative to world commodity prices, particularly in respect to heavier crudes. Recent 
declines in the value of the Canadian dollar relative to the U.S. dollar may alleviate this somewhat.  

Lower oil and natural gas prices in North America present two key challenges to Savanna’s business prospects. First, low 
pricing in the natural gas market has substantially reduced drilling for dry natural gas throughout North America for the past 
several years. While Savanna’s focus had shifted to oil and natural gas liquids-rich areas, the recent reduction in oil and liquids 
driven activity has resulted in increased competitive pressures. Secondly, lower oil and natural gas pricing reduces the cash 
flow that Savanna’s customers generate to pursue other drilling and exploration programs. Given recent steep declines in oil 
prices, coupled with continued low natural gas prices, these factors will negatively impact Savanna in the near-term. North 
American oil and natural gas industry activity is expected to be depressed throughout 2015 and there is a significant degree of 
uncertainty surrounding the duration of the industry slow-down. 
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Equipment Fleet and Capital Program   
The following table outlines the Company’s active drilling rig fleet by type of rig. The fleet totals as at December 31, 2014 
reflect rig counts prior to rig retirements described below. 

  Mar. 4 Dec. 31 Dec. 31

   2015   2014  2013 

 DRILLING RIGS    

 Long-reach horizontal drilling rigs     

  Heavy and ultra-heavy telescoping doubles   52  51 51

  TDS-3000TM  15  15 15

  TDS-2200  8  8 8

  Triples   2  2 2

  Velox triplesTM  2  1 0

   79  77 76

 Shallow drilling rigs     

  North American hybrids - CT 1500   15  19 19

  Australian hybrids  5  5 5

  Single   1  1 1

   21  25 25

 TOTAL DRILLING RIGS   100  102 101

 
In Q4 2014, Savanna’s first of three VeloxTM triple drilling rigs was completed and commenced operations in the U.S. The 
second VeloxTM triple drilling rig was completed subsequent to the end of the year and commenced operations in the U.S. in 
Q1 2015, while the third will commence operations in Q2 2015. Additionally, in Q1 2015, construction of an ultra-heavy 
telescopic double AC drilling rig was completed and the rig commenced operations in Canada. 

At December 31, 2014, Savanna determined to retire four CT-1500 drilling rigs and a pipe-arm single drilling rig. The 
retirements were based on the expectation of little or no future market for these specific rigs in their current capacity and also 
included ancillary drilling equipment. The pipe-arm single was racked throughout 2014 and 2013 and is not included in the 
Company’s December 31, 2014 or 2013 active rig count. The table above reflects these retirements as of the date of this 
MD&A. 

The following table outlines the Company’s active service rig fleet by type of rig. The fleet totals as at December 31, 2014 
reflect rig counts prior to rig retirements described below. 

    Mar. 4 Dec. 31 Dec. 31

   2015   2014  2013 

SERVICE RIGS     

 Singles  37   43  43 

 Doubles  45   47  43 

 Australian service rigs  9   6  4 

 Flush-by units  4   3  1 

 TOTAL SERVICE RIGS   95   99  91 
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In 2014, Savanna retrofitted and transferred five idle service rigs from Canada to the Company’s well servicing operation in 
North Dakota.  

In Q4 2014, Savanna’s first two of five new-build workover rigs and the first two of three new-build flush-by units commenced 
operations in Australia. The next three new-build workover rigs and the third flush-by unit for Australia were also completed. 
The third flush-by unit began working in Q1 2015 and the remaining three workover rigs are expected to go to work in Q2 
2015.  

At December 31, 2014, Savanna determined to retire 18 service rigs, ten of which were racked throughout 2014 and are not 
included in the Company’s December 31, 2014 or 2013 active rig count. The retirements were based on the expectation of little 
or no future market for these specific rigs in their current capacity and also included ancillary equipment. The table above 
reflects these retirements as of the date of this MD&A. 

The following table outlines the deployment of Savanna’s active drilling and service rig fleets by geographic location.  

    Mar. 4 Dec. 31 Dec. 31

   2015   2014  2013 

DRILLING RIGS    

 Canada  68   71  71 

 United States  27   26  25 

 Australia  5   5  5 

   100   102  101 
  

SERVICE RIGS    

 Canada  65   73  73 

 United States  18   18  14 

 Australia  12   8  4 

  95   99  91 

* Included in the tables above are ten drilling rigs and eight service rigs that are operated in limited partnerships partially owned by the Company. 
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CAPITAL PROGRAM   
In 2014, Savanna’s expansion capital was directed toward the following: construction of five service rigs, three flush-by units 
and related trucking equipment for Australia (all contracted); construction of a contracted 1200 horsepower AC ultra-heavy 
double drilling rig for Canada; construction of three contracted 1500 horsepower AC VeloxTM triple drilling rigs for the U.S.; 
and rental equipment for the Fort McKay - Savanna Energy Services Limited Partnership. The following summarizes the 
Company’s 2014 capital program and amounts expended thereunder: 

(Stated in thousands of dollars)                                                         

For the year ended December 31, 2014 Incurred 

Expansion capital    135,086 

Long-lead items on cancelled Australian drilling rig contract    5,478 

Capital for new field operating facilities    13,192 

Upgrades, recertifications, maintenance, spare equipment, drill pipe, and infrastructure    94,176 

Proceeds on disposal of assets    (1,536)

Net capital program spend    246,396 

 
Included in the Company’s 2014 net capital program spend are the following: $5.5 million in long-lead items ordered on award 
of Australian TDS drilling rig contract; $11.1 million in expansion and upgrade capital expected to be incurred in early 2015, 
but instead incurred in 2014; $6.9 million in unrealized foreign exchange on translation of U.S. related expenditures (for 
growth and other capital) into Canadian reporting currency as the value of the U.S. dollar appreciated in the year, and in 
particular in Q4 2014; additional pump capacity and top drive upgrades on Canadian long-reach drilling rigs; and higher 
maintenance capital, based on the higher activity levels, in Canadian long-reach drilling.    

In light of the significant uncertainty in respect of commodity pricing and activity levels for all of Savanna’s services, the 
Company adopted a conservative capital spending program for 2015. Recently, both Savanna and its customer agreed to cancel 
construction of the Australian TDS drilling rigs contracted in Q4 2014, and will reevaluate when market conditions improve. 
Savanna’s planned capital commitment for 2015, is updated as follows: 

(Stated in thousands of dollars)                                                         

Estimated capital required to complete 2014 growth initiatives    16,418 

Estimated capital required to complete 2014 new field operating facilities    18,545 

Maintenance capital for 2015    22,306 

Proceeds on sale of field operating facilities received to date in 2015    (11,500)

Net capital program spend    45,769 

 
In an effort to reduce costs, the Company determined to consolidate a number of its field operating facilities. The $16 million 
aggregate net book value of the land and buildings associated with these locations were classified as held for sale at December 
31, 2014. To date in 2015, total proceeds of $11.5 million were received for two of properties and the remaining locations 
continue to be actively marketed. 

Savanna is continuing to evaluate its 2015 capital program in light of further changes to anticipated activity levels as 2015 
unfolds. 
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Contract Drilling  

Savanna provides contract drilling services through its newly constructed VeloxTM triple drilling rigs, its long-reach horizontal 
telescoping double drilling rigs, TDS-2200 and TDS-3000TM drilling rigs, and proprietary hybrid drilling rigs. In all periods 
presented, the drilling division operated in Canada, the United States and Australia. 

(Stated in thousands of dollars, except revenue per day)  Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended 

December 31 2014 2013 Change 2014 2013 Change

Revenue $  145,038 $  127,969 13% $  573,186  $  502,183 14%

Operating expenses $  102,337 $  92,452 11% $  408,855  $  348,504 17%

Operating margin(1) $  42,701 $  35,517 20% $  164,331  $  153,679 7%

Operating margin % 29% 28% 29% 31% 

Operating days  6,076  5,321 14%  23,997   21,469 12%

Revenue per operating day $  23,871 $  24,050 (1%) $  23,886  $  23,391 2%

Spud to release days(1)  5,036  4,616 9%  20,656   18,629 11%

Wells drilled  616  549 12%  2,490   2,290 9%

Meters drilled  1,322,093  1,088,310 21%  4,843,646   4,325,496 12%

 
FOURTH QUARTER RESULTS   
Overall contract drilling revenue increased relative to Q4 2013, as a result of a 23% increase in operating days in the U.S. and a 
7% increase in operating days in long-reach drilling in Canada. An appreciation in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the 
Canadian dollar further increased revenues in U.S. drilling. The increase in revenue, combined with lower per day operating 
costs, resulted in a $7.3 million increase in operating margin relative to Q4 2013.  

The following summarizes the operating results in the fourth quarter of 2014 and 2013 by type of rig or geographic area. Long-
reach drilling in Canada includes the Company’s telescoping double drilling rigs, TDS-3000TM drilling rigs and TDS-2200 
drilling rigs. 

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Long-reach Shallow

 Drilling Drilling Drilling Drilling

Q4 2014 Canada Canada U.S. Australia Total

Revenue  77,625  7,033  47,650   12,730    145,038 

Operating margin(1)  25,757  230  13,709   3,005    42,701 

Operating margin %(1) 33% 3% 29% 24% 29%

Revenue excluding cost recoveries  69,327  6,400  44,564   12,446    132,737 

Operating margin(1)  25,757  230  13,709   3,005    42,701 

Operating margin %(1) 37% 4% 31% 24% 32%

Average number of rigs deployed  51  20  26   5    102 

Utilization %(2) 58% 13% 82% 31% 54%

 



  M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S  

S a v a n n a  E n e r g y  S e r v i c e s  C o r p .   2 0 1 4  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  14 

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Long-reach Shallow

 Drilling Drilling Drilling Drilling

Q4 2013 Canada Canada U.S. Australia Total

Revenue  71,899  5,338  37,111   13,621    127,969 

Operating margin(1)  23,199  135  8,769   3,414    35,517 

Operating margin %(1) 32% 3% 24% 25% 28%

Revenue excluding cost recoveries  63,434  4,905  34,505   13,393    116,237 

Operating margin(1)  23,199  135  8,769   3,414    35,517 

Operating margin %(1) 37% 3% 25% 25% 31%

Average number of rigs deployed  51  20  25   4    100 

Utilization %(2) 54% 11% 71% 67% 50%

 
In the contract drilling segment, significant costs are incurred and passed through to customers with little or no markup. For Q4 
2014 these costs aggregated $12.3 million (Q4 2013 - $11.7 million). Savanna’s accounting policy with respect to cost 
recoveries billed to customers is to include them as both revenue and operating expenses rather than to net them. Although 
Savanna believes this most appropriately reflects the substance of the underlying transactions, the accounting treatment of cost 
recoveries varies in the oilfield services industry. There is no effect on overall operating margins whether cost recoveries are 
netted or not; however, the different treatments do result in different operating margin percentages, as the same dollar margin is 
factored against lower revenue when cost recoveries are netted. As a result, Savanna believes it is useful to provide revenue 
excluding cost recoveries and the resulting operating margin percentages for comparative purposes.  

The Canadian long-reach drilling rigs delivered improved utilization in Q4 2014 compared to Q4 2013. Operating days were 
7% higher and day rates were flat compared to Q4 2013. These factors resulted in a $2.6 million, or 11%, increase in operating 
margins compared to Q4 2013. The 58% utilization rate for Savanna’s long-reach drilling rigs in Q4 2014 was above the 
Canadian industry average utilization rate of 51% in the same depth categories.   

Operating margins for Savanna’s shallow fleet in the fourth quarter of both 2014 and 2013 were fairly consistent at just above 
break-even. Demand in the shallow drilling market in Canada remained muted throughout 2014, which resulted in low 
utilization and day rates for Savanna’s shallow hybrid fleet outside of oil sands coring work in the winter. However, utilization 
of the shallow fleet outside of Q1 does offset some fixed field costs, and assists with the retention and training of qualified 
crews.  

Savanna’s U.S. drilling operation generated higher revenues based on higher utilization in Q4 2014 compared to Q4 2013. The 
higher utilization was partially driven by Savanna’s first VeloxTM triple drilling rig commencing operations in late November. 
Overall, revenue per day was also higher compared to Q4 2013, as decreases in average day rates were more than offset by an 
appreciation in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian dollar. Operating costs continued to stabilize in Q4 2014 
and began approaching their long-term average levels. Operating costs were 2% lower on a per day basis compared to Q3 2014 
and 10% lower than both Q2 2014 and Q4 2013. The increase in revenue combined with lower per day operating costs resulted 
in a 56% increase in operating margins compared to Q4 2013.  

In Australia, utilization decreased by 35 percentage points in Q4 2014, compared to Q4 2013, as Savanna’s main drilling 
customer placed certain drilling rigs on stand-by for a portion of the quarter. The stand-by rates are lower than operating rates, 
however, Savanna was also able to adjust its variable costs which limited the decrease in operating margin to $0.3 million for 
Savanna’s drilling operations in Australia in Q4 2014 relative to Q4 2013.  
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ANNUAL RESULTS   
Contract drilling revenue increased in 2014 relative to 2013, as a result of an increase in operating days in Canada, the U.S., 
and Australia, and an appreciation in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian dollar. The increase in activity in 
Canada and Australia resulted in a net $10.8 million increase in operating margins despite an increase in operating costs in the 
U.S., which reduced operating margins there. Increased operating costs in the U.S. also resulted in lower overall operating 
margin percentages in Savanna’s contract drilling segment compared to 2013.  

The following summarizes the operating results in 2014 and 2013 by type of rig or geographic area. 

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Long-reach Shallow

 Drilling Drilling Drilling Drilling

YTD 2014 Canada Canada U.S. Australia Total

Revenue  303,676  33,602  176,513   59,395   573,186 

Operating margin(1)  100,596  7,152  42,818   13,765   164,331 

Operating margin %(1) 33% 21% 24% 23% 29%

Revenue excluding cost recoveries  284,165  32,333  165,708   57,059   539,265 

Operating margin(1)  100,596  7,152  42,818   13,765   164,331 

Operating margin %(1) 35% 22% 26% 24% 30%

Average number of rigs deployed  51  20  25   5   101 

Utilization %(2) 59% 16% 81% 58% 56%

 
(Stated in thousands of dollars) Long-reach Shallow

 Drilling Drilling Drilling Drilling

YTD 2013 Canada Canada U.S. Australia Total

Revenue  257,926  35,018  157,068   52,171   502,183 

Operating margin(1)  85,795  9,050  45,932   12,902   153,679 

Operating margin %(1) 33% 26% 29% 25% 31%

Revenue excluding cost recoveries  228,904  33,608  149,302   51,307   463,121 

Operating margin(1)  85,795  9,050  45,932   12,902   153,679 

Operating margin %(1) 37% 27% 31% 25% 33%

Average number of rigs deployed  50  20  26   4   100 

Utilization %(2) 51% 18% 76% 64% 51%
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In 2014 cost recoveries aggregated $33.9 million compared to $39.1 million in the same period in 2013. 

Canadian long-reach drilling delivered improved utilization in 2014, which resulted in a $14.8 million, or 17%, increase in 
operating margin compared to 2013. Lower average day rates in Q1 were offset by higher day rates in the remainder of 2014, 
resulting in relatively flat overall day rates and per day margins for the year compared to 2013. The utilization and day rate 
increases were in part a result of the capital spent on increasing the operating and depth capacity of the fleet over the last 
several years. Top drive technology was added to the entire fleet over the last few years and a number of rigs also underwent 
significant upgrades during this time. In addition, in 2014 Savanna committed $15.9 million toward pump capacity upgrades 
and new top drives. The 59% utilization rate for Savanna’s long-reach drilling rigs in 2014 was above the Canadian industry 
average utilization rate of 48% in the same depth categories.  

The Company’s shallow drilling rig fleet achieved lower utilization, day rates and revenue in Q1 2014 relative to Q1 2013, as a 
result of drilling efficiencies and a decrease in overall oil sands coring activity during the winter coring season. In addition, 
higher variable costs this year versus last and the negative effect of fixed costs on lower revenues resulted in lower operating 
margins and operating margin percentages in 2014 compared to 2013.  

Improved utilization and an appreciation in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian dollar in 2014 resulted in 
higher revenue in Savanna’s U.S. drilling operation compared to 2013. However, operating costs per day were significantly 
higher than last year, particularly in the first six months of 2014. The increase in per day costs in the first half of the year 
resulted in a 7% decrease in operating margin in 2014 relative to 2013. These costs began stabilizing, and decreasing, during 
Q3 and Q4 2014. 

In Australia, Savanna operated an additional rig in 2014 versus the same period in 2013, as the Company’s fifth drilling rig in 
the region commenced operations in December 2013. The additional rig resulted in an increase in operating days, which led to 
an 8% increase in operating margins for Savanna’s drilling operations in Australia in 2014 compared to 2013. The Australian 
drilling operation did experience some periods of weather and customer-driven downtime during the year, most notably in Q4 
2014. Although stand-by revenue was received during most of this downtime, the lower rates (versus operating rates) resulted 
in a slight decrease in operating margin percentages relative to the same period in 2013. 
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Oilfield Services  

Savanna provides well servicing and rental equipment to the oil and gas industry in Canada, the United States and Australia. 
The Company operates single and double service rigs, and a wide array of rental equipment. 

(Stated in thousands of dollars, except revenue per hour)  Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended 

December 31 2014 2013 Change 2014 2013 Change

Revenue $  60,436 $  49,336 22% $  220,509  $  196,931 12%

Operating expenses $  45,981 $  38,241 20% $  169,936  $  149,312 14%

Operating margin(1) $  14,455 $  11,095 30% $  50,573  $  47,619 6%

Operating margin % 24% 22% 23% 24% 

Operating hours - well servicing(1)  45,044 44,059 2%  173,910   163,884 6%

Revenue per operating hour - well servicing $  1,066 $  895 19% $  974  $  923 6%

 
FOURTH QUARTER RESULTS   
Revenue and operating margin for Savanna’s oilfield services division increased in each operating area in Q4 2014 compared 
to Q4 2013 based on improved pricing and/or increased activity. Most of the operating margin increase in Q4 2014 relative to 
Q4 2013 came from Australia. Two of the five new service rigs and two of the three new flush-by units constructed for 
Australia commenced operations in the quarter, which resulted in a 146% increase in operating margin in Australia oilfield 
services in Q4 2014 relative to Q4 2013. 

Included in revenue for Q4 2014, was $12.8 million from oilfield rentals (Q4 2013 - $9.9 million). Of the Q4 2014 rental 
revenue, $6.7 million (Q4 2013 - $4.9 million) was generated in Australia and $0.5 million (Q4 2013 - $0.4 million) was 
eliminated on overall consolidation as inter-segment revenue. Oilfield rentals revenue is excluded from the per hour revenue 
calculations above. 

The following summarizes the operating results by geographic area: 

(Stated in thousands of dollars) 

Q4 2014 Canada U.S. Australia Total

Revenue 29,720 6,784 23,932 60,436

Operating margin(1) 6,849 2,662 4,944 14,455

Operating margin %(1) 23% 39% 21% 24%

Average number of rigs deployed - well servicing 73 18 7.7  99 

Utilization % - well servicing(2) 42% 50% 44% 49%

 
(Stated in thousands of dollars) 

Q4 2013 Canada U.S. Australia Total

Revenue 28,479 5,578 15,279 49,336

Operating margin(1) 6,622 2,455 2,018 11,095

Operating margin %(1) 23% 44% 13% 22%

Average number of rigs deployed - well servicing  83 13 4 100

Utilization % - well servicing(2) 39% 65% 74% 44%
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Revenue in Savanna’s Canadian well servicing operation increased in Q4 2014 compared to Q4 2013 based on higher hourly 
rates. Average per hour revenue for the well servicing fleet in Canada was 8% higher compared to Q4 2013, while the number 
of operating hours decreased by 6%. The decrease in activity, combined with higher per hour variable costs, offset the increase 
in revenue driven by pricing, and as a result operating margins in Canadian well servicing decreased by 7% compared to Q4 
2013. For rentals, revenue increased in Q4 2014 compared to Q4 2013 based on increased utilization, which resulted in a 73% 
increase in operating margin compared to Q4 2013. 

Revenue for well servicing in the U.S. increased in Q4 2014 as a result of more operating hours, based on more active rigs, 
higher pricing relative to Q4 2013, and an appreciation in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian dollar. The 
increase in revenue resulted in an 8% increase in operating margins compared to Q4 2013. Although there were five additional 
rigs in the U.S. service rig fleet in Q4 2014 relative to Q3 2014, three rigs transferred in late Q3 and early Q4 did not operate as 
a result of crew availability in North Dakota.  

In Australia, revenue from service rigs and rental equipment increased by $8.3 million, or 56%, in Q4 2014 relative to Q4 
2013, as two of the five new service rigs and two of the three new flush-by units constructed for Australia commenced 
operations in the quarter. The increase in revenue resulted in a $3 million, or 146%, increase in operating margins in Q4 2014 
compared to Q4 2013. These increases were achieved despite lower utilization in Q4 2014 relative to Q4 2013. The decrease in 
utilization occurred as a major well servicing customer placed certain rigs on stand-by for part of the quarter. Stand-by revenue 
was received on these rigs. The stand-by rates are lower than operating rates; however, Savanna was also able to adjust its 
variable costs which limited the decrease in operating margins on these rigs. 

ANNUAL RESULTS   
Revenue for Savanna’s oilfield services division increased in 2014 compared to 2013, as increases in both the U.S and 
Australia more than offset decreases in Canada. An increase in billable hours, based in part on more active rigs, in both the 
U.S. and Australia resulted in 52% and 59% increases in operating margin in each respective operating area in 2014 relative to 
2013. The combined $8.7 million increase in operating margin from outside of Canada led to year-over-year operating margin 
improvements for the oilfield services division overall, despite operating margin decreases in Canada relative to 2013. 

Included in revenue for 2014, was $51.4 million from oilfield rentals (2013 - $45.6 million). Of the rental revenue in 2014, 
$27.2 million (2013 - $20 million) was generated in Australia and $2 million (2013 - $2.9 million) was eliminated on overall 
consolidation as inter-segment revenue. Oilfield rentals revenue is excluded from the per hour revenue calculations above.  

The following summarizes the operating results by geographic area: 

(Stated in thousands of dollars) 

YTD 2014 Canada U.S. Australia Total

Revenue 113,582 28,096 78,831 220,509

Operating margin(1) 25,852 12,477 12,244 50,573

Operating margin %(1) 23% 44% 16% 23%

Average number of rigs deployed - well servicing  73  16   5   94 

Utilization % - well servicing(2) 42% 62% 59% 51%
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(Stated in thousands of dollars) 

YTD 2013 Canada U.S. Australia Total

Revenue 118,574 19,442 58,915 196,931

Operating margin(1) 31,640 8,260 7,719 47,619

Operating margin %(1) 27% 42% 13% 24%

Average number of rigs deployed - well servicing  84  11   4   99 

Utilization % - well servicing(2) 37% 70% 67% 42%

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Continuing low demand in Canada resulted in lower pricing and activity in Savanna’s well servicing operations in 2014 
compared to 2013. Average revenue per hour was 2% lower compared to 2013, while operating hours from the well servicing 
fleet in Canada were 1% lower. Despite little change in operating hours, year-to-date utilization was higher than 2013 based on 
the number of operational rigs. Operational service rigs in Canada decreased as a result of rigs transferred to North Dakota and 
rigs idled at the start of the year. The lower pricing, coupled with higher per hour operating costs, resulted in a 19% decrease in 
operating margins in Canadian well servicing in 2014, compared to 2013. In rentals, lower demand led to a decrease in activity 
and pricing in 2014 compared to 2013. As a result of the primarily fixed cost structure of this business, an 11% decrease in 
operating margins resulted. 

Savanna’s strategy of redeploying idle Canadian service rigs to the U.S. proved beneficial in 2014. Revenue for well servicing 
in the U.S. increased in 2014 as a result of more operating hours, based on more active rigs, higher pricing relative to 2013, and 
an appreciation in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian dollar. The increase in revenue resulted in a $4.2 
million, or 51%, increase in operating margins compared to 2013.  

In Australia, revenue from service rigs and rental equipment increased by 34% and operating margins increased by 59% in 
2014 compared to 2013. The increases are a result of improved utilization in the first nine months of the year and an increase in 
the active rig fleet in Q4 2014. Two new service rigs and two new flush-by units commenced operations in Q4 2014, and the 
increase in activity and revenue from these rigs more than offset the decrease in Q4 utilization from rigs placed on stand-by in 
the quarter.  Stand-by revenue was received in Q4 2014, which limited the decrease in operating margins on these rigs. Overall, 
the increase in revenue in 2014 resulted in a $4.5 million increase in operating margins compared to 2013. 
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Other Financial Information  
(Stated in thousands of dollars) Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended 

December 31 2014 2013 Change 2014 2013 Change

General and administrative expenses*  15,412  12,101 27%  57,292   50,764 13%

  as a % of revenue 7.5% 6.8% 7.2% 7.3% 

Share-based compensation*  (3,160)  2,267 ∆  (784)  7,044 ∆

Depreciation and amortization*  28,679  22,957 25%  106,247   86,658 23%

Impairment losses  350,600  - ∆  393,879   - ∆

Finance expenses  3,413  4,396 (22%)  14,917   14,929 (0%)

Other income  (2,735)  (538) 408%  (2,429)  (1,833) 33%

Income tax (recovery) expense  (97,380)  (67) ∆  (101,920)  10,162 ∆

Effective income tax rate 29% 23% 29% 23% 

* General and administrative expenses above, differs from the amount reported in the consolidated statement of net earnings as it excludes the attributable amounts of 

share-based compensation and depreciation and amortization. Those attributable amounts have been included under the applicable headings above. This presentation is 

consistent with how management reviews the information internally. 

∆ Calculation not meaningful 

Overall, general and administrative expenses for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2014, increased compared to the 
same periods in 2013. Increases related to: upgrading Savanna’s support functions within the Company’s U.S. and Australian 
corporate offices; increased training, safety, and leadership development initiatives; increases related to employee incentive 
programs in-line with higher revenues and improved financial performance of the Company overall; and an appreciation in the 
value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian dollar. In addition, in 2014, Savanna incurred $2.1 million (2013 – $1.1 
million) in severance and bad debt expenses, approximately 58% (2013 – 60%) of which is included in general and 
administrative expenses. 

Within general and administrative expenses are the costs associated with Savanna’s sales teams and support functions. 
Savanna’s support functions include: engineering; procurement and inventory; human resources; health, safety and 
environment; finance; and information technology. In 2014 and Q1 2015, Savanna reviewed its processes and functions with 
respect to these support groups with the aim of improving consistency and efficiency. As a result of this review and in light of 
current market conditions, the Company has determined to restructure both how and where this support will be delivered to its 
operating divisions, including the fixed cost component of its operating expenses related to field locations. To date, overall 
fixed cost positions have been reduced by 30% across the Company. In addition, named executives and the Board of Directors 
have taken more than a 15% reduction in salaries and fees, and average salary and wage roll backs of 7% have been 
implemented for all other non-rig related employees. This restructuring, combined with salary and wage roll backs, will result 
in significant fixed cost reductions in 2015, relative to 2014, despite the related severance costs incurred in 2015. Savanna will 
continue to review its fixed cost structure and may make further adjustments as the market unfolds in 2015. 

The decrease in share-based compensation for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2014, compared to the same periods in 
2013, is primarily a result of mark-to-market adjustments on the Company’s deferred share units, performance share units and 
restricted share units vested, or expected to vest. 

The overall increase in depreciation and amortization for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2014, compared to the same 
periods in 2013, is primarily a result of the following: higher utilization in the Company’s contract drilling segment; an 
increase in operating activity and asset cost bases in both Australia and U.S. well servicing; accelerated depreciation on the 
shallow drilling rig fleet; and an increase in the value of assets depreciated on a straight-line basis. Savanna is currently 
conducting its annual review of the estimated useful lives of its property and equipment. The technological and physical 



  M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S  

S a v a n n a  E n e r g y  S e r v i c e s  C o r p .   2 0 1 4  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  21 

capacity of equipment, geographic differences, and the effect of lower anticipated near-term activity levels are all being 
considered. The Company expects the outcome of this review to result in assets being more aggressively depreciated on a go 
forward basis. 

The magnitude of the decrease in the price of oil in the months preceding and following the end of 2014, and its potential 
impact on Savanna led to an extensive review of the Company’s strategies, operating structure, and legacy asset base. Market 
dynamics related to specific asset classes and geographies were also considered. Given the significant degree of uncertainty 
regarding oil and natural gas activity and pricing for the remainder of 2015 and into 2016, the Company determined to retire a 
number of assets from its active fleet, as described under “Equipment Fleet and Capital Program” in this MD&A. As a result of 
this uncertainty and the dramatic change in the Company’s operating environment, as well as the disconnect between the 
Company’s market capitalization and the book value of its assets, the Company also conducted impairment tests on specific 
assets, and on a cash generating unit (“CGU”) basis at both September 30 and December 31, 2014, on a higher of fair value 
less cost to sell, and value-in-use basis. These tests indicated that the carrying amounts of certain assets and CGUs exceeded 
their recoverable amount. The impairment tests and asset retirements resulted in impairment losses of $383.6 million on 
property and equipment and $10.3 million on goodwill and intangible assets. The goodwill and intangible asset impairment 
losses related to the North American well servicing CGU within the oilfield services segment. The property and equipment 
impairment losses, including those on asset retirements, related primarily to the North American well servicing and rentals 
CGUs, and the North American shallow and long-reach drilling CGUs. Certain assets, while economic and active at 
commodity pricing and activity levels that existed through most of 2014, may become challenged in a prolonged low 
commodity price and oilfield services activity environment. Impairment losses are a result of management’s best estimates at a 
specific point in time. These estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty as they can be dependent on factors outside of 
management’s control. 

The decrease in finance expenses in Q4 2014, compared to Q4 2013, is a result of an increase in the amount of borrowing costs 
capitalized this year versus last. Overall for the year in 2014, finance expenses were relatively flat. Total interest costs for 2014 
were higher, based on an increase in the Company’s average long-term debt outstanding and an increase in the average 
effective interest rates on that debt, however, $1.8 million in interest was capitalized in 2014 (2013 - $Nil), due to an increase 
in the number and magnitude of qualifying capital projects this year versus last. 

The breakdown of other (income) expenses is as follows: 

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended

December 31  2014  2013   2014  2013 

Losses (gains) on disposal of assets  (95)  (538)  951  (1,713)

Foreign exchange (gains) losses  (2,478)  (37)  (3,334)  (245)

Other  (162)  37   (46)  125 

  (2,735)  (538)  (2,429)  (1,833)

 
The losses on disposal of assets in 2014 resulted from the sale of redundant assets for proceeds of $1.5 million. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses arise on the settlement of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities (gains and losses on 
translation of foreign subsidiaries are included in other comprehensive income); the changes in 2014 are due primarily to the 
change in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian dollar year-over-year. 

The decrease in income tax expense for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2014, compared to the same periods in 2013, 
is primarily a result of the year-over-year decrease in pre-tax earnings, including impairment losses. The Company’s operations 
are complex and computation of the provision for income taxes involves tax interpretations, regulations and legislation that are 
continually changing.  There are matters that have not yet been confirmed by taxation authorities; however, management 
believes the provision for income taxes is adequate. 
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Aboriginal Partnerships  

Savanna conducts a portion of its operations through limited partnerships in which each of Savanna and an Aboriginal partner 
hold approximately one half of the partnership interest. Savanna fully consolidates all of these partnerships, with its Aboriginal 
partners’ share in the equity and net earnings of the partnerships reported as non-controlling interests. 

Savanna’s Aboriginal partners are as follows:   
 Alexis Nakota Sioux Nation; 
 Blood Tribe; 
 Cold Lake First Nation 
 Dene Tha’ First Nation; 
 Duncan’s First Nation  
 Fort McKay First Nation;  
 Heart Lake First Nation; 
 Saddle Lake Cree Nation; 
 Sturgeon Lake Cree Nation. 

In 2014, Savanna operated eight long-reach horizontal telescoping double drilling rigs, two CT-1500 drilling rigs, eight service 
rigs, and rental equipment through these limited partnerships. On average in 2013, Savanna operated eight long-reach 
horizontal telescoping double drilling rigs and six service rigs through these partnerships.  

The following outlines the Aboriginal communities’ share of the revenue and expenses included in the amounts reported in this 
MD&A, and their share of cash contributions to, and distributions from the limited partnerships. 

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended 

December 31 2014 2013 Change 2014 2013 Change

OPERATING RESULTS - CONSOLIDATED       

Revenue  6,062  5,890 3%  25,174   17,834 41%

Operating expenses  4,203  4,018 5%  16,667   11,943 40%

Operating margin(1)  1,859  1,872 (1%)  8,507   5,891 44%

EBITDAS(1)  1,644  1,575 4%  7,275   4,860 50%

Net earnings  (6,349)  1,151 (652%)  (2,717)  3,693 (174%)

OPERATING RESULTS - CONTRACT DRILLING       

Revenue  4,760  4,747 0%  19,276   13,565 42%

Operating expenses  2,991  3,048 (2%)  11,767   8,715 35%

Operating margin(1)  1,769  1,699 4%  7,509   4,850 55%

OPERATING RESULTS - OILFIELD SERVICES       

Revenue  1,302  1,143 14%  5,898   4,269 38%

Operating expenses  1,212  970 25%  4,900   3,228 52%

Operating margin(1)  90  173 (48%)  998   1,041 (4%)

CASH FLOWS - CONSOLIDATED       

Partnership contributions  -  2,000 (100%)  3,000   2,000 50%

Partnership distributions  (1,120)  (900) 24%  (4,445)  (3,800) 17%
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Quarterly Results  

In addition to other market factors, quarterly results of Savanna are markedly affected by weather and seasonal patterns 
throughout its operating areas in Canada, which still constitute the majority of Savanna’s operations. Historically, the first 
quarter of the calendar year is very active in Canada, followed by a much slower second quarter.  This variation in industry 
activity levels on a quarterly basis, particularly between the first and second quarters, can dramatically impact the activity 
levels of the Company and its operating results in Canada, independent of other demand factors. As the Company continues to 
expand outside of Canada, the relative impact of Canadian seasonality will be reduced. The following is a summary of selected 
financial information of the Company for the last eight completed quarters. 

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS   

(Stated in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)  

  Dec. 31 Sep. 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31 Dec. 31 Sep. 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31

Three Months Ended  2014 2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013 2013

Revenue  204,965   200,016  148,921  237,988  177,025  170,611   112,087  236,886 

Operating expenses  147,753   142,741  121,153  165,067  130,330  119,988   89,463  155,168 

Operating margin(1)  57,212   57,275  27,768  72,921  46,695  50,623   22,624  81,718 

Operating margin %(1) 28% 29% 19% 31% 26% 30% 20% 34%

EBITDAS(1)  41,799   42,307  14,362  59,416  34,594  38,182   10,133  67,987 

  Attr. to shareholders  40,155   40,693  13,936  55,825  33,019  37,129   10,179  65,709 

  Per share: diluted  0.45   0.45  0.16  0.63  0.37  0.42   0.12  0.76 

Impairment losses,         

  net of taxes(1)  (248,288)  (33,627)  -  -  -  -   -  - 

  Per share: diluted  (2.76)  (0.38)  -   -   -   -   -   -  

Net earnings (loss)  (237,618)  (23,542)  (12,043)  21,176  5,579  7,338   (8,600)  29,619 

  Attr. to shareholders  (231,269)  (24,420)  (11,953)  18,331  4,428  6,692   (8,644)  27,767 

  Per share: diluted  (2.57)  (0.27)  (0.13)  0.21  0.05  0.08   (0.10)  0.32 

Total assets  1,183,925   1,441,736  1,403,680  1,461,493  1,391,602  1,344,268   1,321,193  1,407,130 

Long-term debt  350,615   308,842  255,409  266,546  246,568  237,241   231,338  261,913 
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SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS – CONTRACT DRILLING   

(Stated in thousands of dollars, except revenue per day)  

  Dec. 31 Sep. 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31 Dec. 31 Sep. 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31

Three Months Ended   2014 2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013 2013

Revenue $  145,038  $  144,051 $  104,640 $  179,457 $  127,969 $  123,507  $  77,027 $  173,680 

Operating expenses $  102,337  $  101,427 $  82,913 $  122,178 $  92,452 $  85,156  $  58,580 $  112,316 

Operating margin(1) $  42,701  $  42,624 $  21,727 $  57,279 $  35,517 $  38,351  $  18,447 $  61,364 

Operating margin %(1) 29% 30% 21% 32% 28% 31% 24% 35%

Operating Days  6,076   6,225  4,478  7,218  5,321  5,578   3,464  7,106 

Revenue per         

  operating day $  23,871  $  23,141 $  23,368 $  24,862 $  24,050 $  22,142  $  22,236 $  24,441 

Spud to release days   5,036    5,458   3,883   6,279   4,616   4,881    2,980   6,152 

Wells drilled   616    691   417   766   549   615    340   786 

Meters drilled  1,322,093   1,296,851  822,420  1,402,282  1,088,310  1,199,186   751,702  1,286,298 

Utilization(2)                 

  Canada  45% 49% 26% 67% 42% 45% 14% 65%

  U.S.  82% 83% 83% 78% 71% 74% 78% 81%

  Australia  31% 73% 69% 58% 67% 74% 65% 51%

  Canadian industry                 

 average  44% 46% 24% 61% 43% 40% 18% 58%

 
SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS – OILFIELD SERVICES   

(Stated in thousands of dollars, except revenue per hour)  

  Dec. 31 Sep. 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31 Dec. 31 Sep. 30 Jun. 30 Mar. 31

Three Months Ended   2014 2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013 2013

Revenue $  60,436  $  56,389 $  44,416 $  59,268 $  49,336 $  47,716  $  35,136 $  64,743 

Operating expenses $  45,981  $  41,798 $  38,450 $  43,707 $  38,241 $  35,518  $  31,055 $  44,488 

Operating margin(1) $  14,455  $  14,591 $  5,966 $  15,561 $  11,095 $  12,198  $  4,081 $  20,255 

Operating margin %(1) 24% 26% 13% 26% 22% 26% 12% 31%

Operating hours  45,044   46,180  34,361  48,325  44,059  41,824   26,751  51,250 

Revenue per hour $  1,066  $  919 $  984 $  936 $  895 $  879  $  988 $  949 

Utilization(2)          

  Canada  42% 44% 29% 51% 39% 36% 20% 53%

  U.S.  50% 65% 69% 67% 65% 77% 69% 72%

  Australia  44% 78% 70% 65% 74% 75% 61% 61%
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Financial Condition and Liquidity  

The market risks outlined under “Market Trends” and under “Risks and Uncertainties” in this MD&A can significantly affect 
the financial condition and liquidity of the Company.  Savanna’s ability to access its debt facilities is directly dependent on, 
among other factors, its debt levels, interest expenses, dividends paid, and trailing EBITDAS.  Additionally, the ability of 
Savanna to raise capital through the issuance of equity could be restricted in the face of volatility in worldwide capital markets 
or in the energy related capital markets.   

Savanna’s primary objective in managing capital, given the cyclical nature of the oil and gas services business, is to preserve 
the Company’s financial flexibility in order to benefit from potential opportunities as they arise, and in turn to maximize 
returns for Savanna shareholders. Management believes this objective will be achieved by: prudently managing the capital 
generated through internal growth; optimizing the use of lower cost capital; raising share capital when required to fund growth 
initiatives; and maintaining a conservative approach to safeguarding the Company’s assets. 

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATIONS  

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended 

December 31 2014 2013 Change 2014 2013 Change

Operating cash flows(1)  40,624  28,838 41%  146,488   137,593 6%

  Per diluted share  0.45  0.33 36%  1.64   1.58 4%

 
The Company’s operating cash flows are closely related to its operating margin and general and administrative expenses. 
Consequently, the increase in operating cash flows in Q4 2014, compared to Q4 2013, is directly related to the increase in 
operating margin net of general and administrative expenses in the same respective periods. Higher utilization and improved 
operating margins in Savanna’s Canadian long-reach drilling, U.S. drilling, and Australian well servicing divisions were the 
primary drivers for an overall increase in operating cash flows in Q4 2014 relative to Q4 2013. The Company also realized 
$2.5 million more in foreign exchange gains in Q4 2014 versus Q4 2013. 

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the increase in operating cash flows compared to 2013 is also directly related to the 
year-over-year increase in operating margin net of general and administrative expenses. Higher utilization and improved 
operating margin in Savanna’s Canadian long-reach drilling, U.S. well servicing, and Australian divisions were the primary 
drivers for an overall increase in operating cash flows in 2014. The following also affected operating cash flows in 2014, 
compared to 2013: Savanna paid $2.5 million more in interest in 2014, and paid $0.9 million more in taxes net of taxes 
received compared to 2013. The Company also realized $3.1 million more in foreign exchange gains in 2014 versus 2013. 
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WORKING CAPITAL   

(Stated in thousands of dollars)    

 Dec. 31 Dec. 31

 2014 2013 Change

Working capital held outside of partnerships  68,727   81,970  (13,243)

Working capital held in partnerships partially owned by the Company  7,313   4,428  2,885 

Working capital(1)  76,040   86,398  (10,358)

 
The decrease in working capital relative to December 31, 2013, relates primarily to: lower cash, net of bank indebtedness, 
lower accounts receivable based on improved collections, and higher accounts payable and accrued liabilities related to 2014 
expansionary capital initiatives. Included in working capital at December 31, 2014 was $16 million in land and buildings 
classified as held for sale. To date in 2015, Savanna has sold two of these properties for aggregate proceeds of $11.5 million. 

Savanna’s net debt(1) position at December 31, 2014, was $274.6 million, an increase of $114.4 million, or 71%, from the 
Company’s $160.2 million net debt(1) position at December 31, 2013. The increase was due primarily to an increase in capital 
expenditures related to expansionary capital initiatives under the Company’s 2014 capital program, as described under 
“Equipment Fleet and Capital Program” in this MD&A. 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended 

December 31 2014 2013 Change 2014 2013 Change

Purchase of property and equipment  (78,875)  (49,604) 59%  (246,904)  (124,870) 98%

Proceeds on disposal of assets  749  1,011 (26%)  1,536   5,589 (73%)

 
The property and equipment purchases for quarter and year ended December 31, 2014, are associated with expenditures under 
the Company’s 2014 capital program as described under “Equipment Fleet and Capital Program” in this MD&A.  

The proceeds on disposal of assets in 2014 arose on the sale of redundant assets and resulted in a $1 million loss. 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES   

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended 

December 31 2014 2013 Change 2014 2013 Change

Shares issued on exercise of options  58  4,391 (99%)  2,459   8,673 (72%)

Dividends paid in cash  (6,159)  (5,558) 11%  (24,057)  (22,628) 6%

Issuance of long-term debt  46,798  50,000 (6%)  132,849   92,369 44%

Repayment of long-term debt  (7,819)  (42,713) (82%)  (36,064)  (99,413) (64%)

 
At the date of this MD&A, the number of common shares outstanding was 90.3 million. The number of stock options 
outstanding was 4.6 million, the proceeds from which, if exercised, would be $33.8 million; however, all of the outstanding 
options have exercise prices in excess of current share prices. 
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In 2014, Savanna declared dividends totaling $32.2 million or $0.36 per share. Of the dividends declared, $8.1 million was 
reinvested in additional common shares through the Company’s dividend reinvestment plan. Subsequent to the end of the year, 
Savanna's management and board reassessed the level of the Company's dividend in the context of prevailing market 
conditions. In this regard, Savanna reduced the Company's dividend from $0.03 per share per month ($0.36 per share per year), 
and declared a $0.03 per share quarterly dividend to be paid to shareholders of record on March 31, 2015. The Company also 
suspended its dividend reinvestment plan with respect to dividends paid after January 15, 2015.  

Savanna’s total debt outstanding at December 31, 2014 was as follows:  

(Stated in thousands of dollars)     

 Dec. 31 Dec. 31

 2014 2013

 Authorized Outstanding Outstanding Change

U.S. unsecured line of credit*  5,801  -   -  - 

Canadian operating facility*  20,000  -   10,236  (10,236)

Revolving credit facilities  230,000  161,207   63,816  97,391 

Senior unsecured notes   175,000  175,000   175,000  - 

Finance lease obligations   1,609  1,609   1,285  324 

Limited partnership facilities  20,799  12,799   6,467  6,332 

Total debt  453,209  350,615   256,804  93,811 

Less amounts classified as bank indebtedness*  (25,801)  -   (10,236)  10,236 

Total long-term debt, including the current portions thereof  427,408  350,615   246,568  104,047 

 
The increase in the total debt outstanding was primarily used to fund capital expenditures under the Company’s 2014 capital 
program as described under “Equipment Fleet and Capital Program” in this MD&A.  

In Q1 2014, Savanna secured $17 million in new financings in two separate limited partnerships partially owned by the 
Company. The financings consisted of a $14 million line of credit in the Company’s partnership with Fort McKay First Nation 
and a $3 million term loan in another pre-existing partnership. As of December 31, 2014, $9 million of the new partnership 
financings had been drawn, the proceeds of which were paid to Savanna in exchange for amounts owing on equipment vended 
into these same partnerships.   

In Q2 2014, Savanna renewed its senior secured revolving credit facility, increased the amount available by $50 million, and 
extended the term of the loan by one year. The entire $250 million facility, which consists of the Canadian operating facility 
and revolving credit facilities in the table above, is for a committed four-year term. All drawn amounts are due in May 2018, or 
four months earlier if the Company’s senior unsecured notes are not refinanced on terms acceptable to the lender. Of the total 
amount outstanding on the overall revolving credit facility at December 31, 2014, $81.2 million Canadian dollar equivalent 
was denominated in U.S. dollars ($70 million U.S. dollars).  

Savanna has approximately $167.5 million drawn on Savanna’s total available senior secured revolving credit facility of $250 
million, as of the date of this MD&A, of which $87.1 million Canadian dollar equivalent was denominated in U.S. dollars ($70 
million U.S. dollars). In addition, as part of its senior secured credit facility, Savanna has an available $50 million accordion, 
which it can request as an increase to the total available facility. 
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The Company’s ability to access its senior secured revolving credit facility is directly dependent, among other factors, on the 
following financial ratios: 

    

 Dec. 31 Dec. 31

 2014 2013 Threshold

Borrowings on senior debt to twelve-month trailing EBITDAS  1.1   0.5 3.0:1 max

Total debt (excluding limited partnership facilities) to twelve-month trailing EBITDAS  2.3   1.7 4.0:1 max

Twelve-month trailing EBITDAS to interest expense  9.9   9.7 3.0:1  min

Dividends paid to excess cash flows 19% 18% 60% max

 
Readers are cautioned that the ratios described above do not have standardized meanings under IFRS as the computation of 
these ratios excludes amounts from certain non-guarantor subsidiaries and the limited partnerships partially owned by the 
Company. The Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants at December 31, 2014. 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS   
In the normal course of business, the Company incurs contractual obligations, primarily related to short-term and long-term 
indebtedness and operating leases. Capital commitments relating to equipment purchases, asset construction, maintenance 
capital, rig upgrades and rig re-certifications are estimated based on committed capital budgets, which are subject to change. 
Actual expenditures are recorded as capital asset additions at the time of payment and could differ from these estimates. The 
expected maturities of the Company’s contractual and constructive obligations, including interest, are as follows: 

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 

For the twelve month periods ending  2015  2016  2017  2018   2019 Total

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  101,215  -  -  -   - 101,215

Income taxes payable  5,064  -  -  -   - 5,064

Operating leases   4,248  3,439  2,987  2,641   2,436 15,751

Capital commitments  57,269  -  -  -   - 57,269

Long-term debt*   23,331  22,850  21,011  348,908   1,042 417,142

  191,127  26,289  23,998  351,549   3,478 596,441

* Interest payments required on the revolving credit facility are estimated based on an assumed static rate of interest. 

 
CONTINGENCIES 
The Company was subject to legal claims at December 31, 2014. Although the outcome of these matters is not determinable at 
this time, the Company believes the claims will not have any material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or 
operating results. 
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Outlook  

From an operations perspective, Savanna had a positive fourth quarter of 2014, with a 23% increase in EBITDAS year-over-
year. Nearly all of its operating divisions achieved activity, revenue and operating margin increases relative to Q4 2013, 
despite industry headwinds. Overall for 2014, the Canadian long-reach drilling, U.S. well servicing, and Australian divisions 
translated revenue increases into considerable operating margin increases compared to 2013. These increases more than offset 
activity and operating margin decreases in the Company’s Canadian shallow drilling, well servicing and rentals businesses, and 
higher operating costs in Savanna’s U.S. drilling operation in the first half of the year, resulting in record annual operating 
margins and EBITDAS. 

Looking forward, 2015 is going to be a challenging year for Savanna and the oilfield services industry as a whole. North 
American drilling and service rig activity to date in the first quarter of 2015, is down significantly compared to 2014. The first 
quarter of the year is typically the most active quarter for operations in Canada, which still constitutes the majority of 
Savanna’s operations and revenue base. Based on dramatic declines in oil prices in the last six months, persisting low natural 
gas prices, and the uncertain duration of the current low price environment, oil and gas companies have reduced their spending 
levels for 2015, which will have a negative effect on the oilfield services industry and Savanna. 

To help mitigate the effect of the low activity levels expected for the remainder of the year, Savanna took the first steps toward 
a significant restructuring in early 2015. Field locations are being consolidated and both the fixed cost component of its 
operating expenses and general and administrative expenses are being reduced. This restructuring is being completed with the 
aim of becoming more agile in the face of volatile oil and gas activity levels, by better aligning the Company’s cost structure 
with the variable nature of the oilfield services industry. To date, fixed cost staff positions have been reduced by 30% across 
the Company and salary and wage roll backs have been implemented. Additionally, Savanna has begun to rationalize its legacy 
asset base and retired a number of assets in order to reduce the capital, repairs, maintenance and people required to manage 
equipment with little or no future marketability. The Company will continue to assess the long-term fit of various components 
of its capital asset base to unfolding market demand in terms of specific asset classes and geographies. 

Savanna’s 2014 rig-build initiatives added 12 rigs and, as important, 12 long-term contracts, eight of which began generating 
returns in the last five months. The three new VeloxTM triple drilling rigs and new 1200 horse-power double drilling rig should 
help mitigate general activity declines on the rest of Savanna’s North American drilling fleet. The other eight rig-builds, five 
workover rigs and three new flush-by units, were delivered to Australia. Although the Australian liquefied natural gas industry 
is not immune to global commodity price pressures, Savanna’s take or pay contract status on the majority of its rigs in 
Australia should also mitigate the impact of activity reductions in 2015. The four new-build rigs yet to commence operations 
are all expected to be operating in Q2 2015. Including revenue days on the 12 new-builds above, contracted through 2015 and 
beyond, Savanna has over 9,000 take or pay contracted revenue days on its drilling and well servicing fleets in 2015 plus 13 
long-reach drilling rigs currently under term contracts in Canada. These contract days will help mitigate general activity 
declines on the rest of Savanna’s drilling and service rig fleets. 

The strategic focus of the Company in 2015 is centered on: protecting its balance sheet; refocusing its operating assets; and 
better aligning its cost structure with the variable nature of the oilfield services industry. Savanna’s key 2015 initiatives in this 
regard are as follows: 

BALANCE SHEET STRATEGIES  
 Defer long-term growth initiatives; 
 Monetize redundant and non-operating assets; and 
 Reduce annual dividend. 
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OPERATIONAL STRATEGIES  
 Rationalize legacy asset base based on a combination of market dynamics, specific asset classes and geographies; 
 Reduce repairs and maintenance and maintenance capital; 
 Consolidate field locations and permanently reduce fixed cost field support functions;  
 Restructure and centralize corporate support functions, processes and systems, thereby reducing costs;  
 Reduce fixed cost positions throughout the Company; and  
 Implement wage roll backs throughout the Company. 

 
 
 

Non-IFRS Measures  

As described earlier in this MD&A, the Company references the following financial measures that are not recognized under 
IFRS: operating margin, operating margin percentage, EBITDAS, operating cash flows, capital assets, working capital, and net 
debt. Management believes that, in addition to the amounts reported in the Company’s consolidated financial statements, these 
measures are useful in assessing the Company’s performance, investment in operating assets, liquidity and leverage. These 
measures are unlikely to be comparable to similar measures presented by other companies. The non-IFRS measures referenced 
in this MD&A reconcile to the IFRS measures reported in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as follows, unless 
reconciled elsewhere: 

EBITDAS       

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended  

December 31 2014 2013 2014 2013 2012

Earnings (loss) before income taxes  (334,998)  5,512  (353,945)  44,098  54,930  

Add (subtract):       

  Other (income) expenses  (2,735)  (538)  (2,429)  (1,833)  365  

  Finance expenses  3,413  4,396  14,917   14,929  13,150  

  Impairment losses  350,600  -  393,879   -  6,687  

  Depreciation and amortization  28,679  22,957  106,247   86,658  75,461  

  Share-based compensation  (3,160)  2,267  (784)  7,044  6,833  

Total EBITDAS  41,799  34,594  157,885   150,896  157,426 

Less EBITDAS attributable to non-controlling interests  (1,644)  (1,575)  (7,275)  (4,860)  (5,400)

EBITDAS attributable to shareholders of the Company  40,155  33,019  150,610   146,036  152,026 

 

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF TAX      

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended 

December 31 2014 2013 2014 2013 2012

Impairment losses  (350,600)  -  (393,879)  -  (6,687)

Add: deferred income tax recovery  102,312  -  111,965   -  1,672 

Impairment losses, net of tax  (248,288)  -  (281,914)  -  (5,015)
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OPERATING CASH FLOWS      

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended 

December 31 2014 2013 2014 2013 2012

Cash flows from operations  41,336  31,422  154,498   133,755  162,850 

Add (subtract): change in non-cash working capital  (712)  (2,584)  (8,010)  3,838  (21,469)

  40,624  28,838  146,488   137,593  141,381 

 
ACQUISITION OF CAPITAL ASSETS      

(Stated in thousands of dollars) Three Months Ended Twelve Months Ended 

December 31 2014 2013 2014 2013 2012

Purchase of property and equipment  78,875  49,604  246,904   124,870  169,582 

Property and equipment acquired through business acquisition  -  -  -   -  17,013 

Non-cash property and equipment additions  -  -  937   -  1,208 

  78,875  49,604  247,841   124,870  187,803 

 
CAPITAL ASSETS      

(Stated in thousands of dollars) 

At December 31 2014 2013 2012

Property and equipment  946,578   1,185,254  1,144,026 

Intangible assets   -   998  1,528 

  946,578   1,186,252  1,145,554 

 
WORKING CAPITAL      

(Stated in thousands of dollars) 

As at December 31 2014 2013 2012

Current assets  182,319   184,613  169,583 

Less: current liabilities  (110,778)  (100,568)  (78,123)

Add: current portion of long-term debt  4,499   2,353  2,665 

  76,040   86,398  94,125 

 

NET DEBT      

(Stated in thousands of dollars) 

As at December 31 2014 2013 2012

Long-term debt  350,615   246,568  249,938 

Less: working capital as defined above  (76,040)  (86,398)  (94,125)

  274,575   160,170  155,813 
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Related Party Transactions  

In Q4 2014, revenue in the amount of $1.5 million (Q4 2013 - $2.3 million) was earned from customers that have common 
directors of the Company, bringing the total earned in 2014 to $6.5 million (2013 - $6.9 million). These related party 
transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at fair value, which are the amounts of consideration 
established and agreed to by the related parties and, which in the opinion of management, are considered similar to those 
negotiable with third parties. 

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 

This MD&A is based on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements requires that certain estimates and judgements be made with respect to the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. These estimates are based on historical experience and 
management’s judgement. Anticipating future events involves uncertainty and consequently the estimates used by management 
in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements may change as future events unfold, additional experience is 
acquired or the Company’s operating environment changes. Management considers the following to be the most significant of 
these estimates and judgements. 

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 
Depreciation of property, equipment and intangible assets is carried out on the basis of the estimated useful lives of the related 
assets.  Equipment under construction is not depreciated until it is available for use.  Included in property and equipment is 
equipment acquired under finance leases.  All equipment is depreciated based on the straight-line method, utilizing either 
years, operating days in the case of drilling equipment, or operating hours in the case of well servicing equipment.  All 
equipment is depreciated net of expected residual values of 0% - 20%. 

Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated useful lives of property and equipment and the appropriate depreciation 
methodology requires judgement and is based on currently available information, including periodic depreciation studies 
conducted by the Company.  Additionally, the Company canvasses its competitors to assess whether the methodologies and 
rates utilized are consistent with the remainder of the sector in which Savanna operates.  Changes in circumstances, such as 
technological advances, changes to the Company’s business strategy, changes in the Company’s capital strategy or changes in 
regulations may result in the actual useful lives differing from the Company’s estimates.   

A change in the remaining useful life of a group of assets, or their expected residual value, will affect the depreciation rate used 
to amortize the group of assets and thus affect depreciation expense as reported in the Company’s results of operations. These 
changes are reported prospectively when they occur.   

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 
The values of property, equipment, intangible assets and goodwill are reviewed annually, or more frequently, if events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset 
belongs. The determination of CGUs and the allocation of assets thereto are based on management’s judgement.  
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Assessing fair value less costs to sell requires 
management judgement with respect to assumptions used in the pricing of assets. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. As a 
result, any impairment losses are a result of management’s best estimates of fair value less costs to sell, expected revenues, 
expenses, cash flows, and discount rates at a specific point in time. These estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty as 
they are dependent on factors outside of management’s control.  

In addition, by their nature, impairment tests involve a significant degree of judgement as expectations concerning future cash 
flows and the selection of appropriate market inputs are subject to considerable risks and uncertainties. 

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 
Compensation expense associated with stock options and performance share entitlements (“PSEs”) granted is based on various 
assumptions, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, to produce an estimate of fair value.  This estimate may vary due 
to changes in the variables used in the model including interest rates, expected life, expected volatility, expected forfeitures and 
share prices. Estimating expected life and forfeitures requires judgement. 

Compensation expense is also provided for deferred share units (“DSUs”), restricted share units (“RSUs”), and performance 
share units (“PSUs”). The number of DSUs, RSUs and PSUs expected to vest are measured at fair value at each reporting 
period on a mark-to-market basis; any changes in their fair values are recognized immediately in earnings. An estimate of the 
number of DSUs and RSUs expected to vest based on certain vesting criteria, and an estimate of the number of PSUs expected 
to vest based on certain performance and other vesting criteria is made each reporting period. Estimating vesting criteria and 
forfeitures involves judgement. The number of DSUs, RSUs and PSUs that actually vest could differ from those estimates and 
any changes are recognized prospectively when they occur as an increase or decrease in compensation expense. 

PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE 
The allowance for doubtful accounts and past due receivables are reviewed by management on a monthly basis. Accounts 
receivable are considered for impairment on a case-by-case basis when they are past due or when objective evidence is 
received that a customer will default. The Company takes into consideration the customer’s payment history, their credit 
worthiness and the current economic environment in which the customer operates to assess impairment. The Company’s 
historical bad debt expenses have not been significant and are usually limited to specific customer circumstances. However, 
given the cyclical nature of the oil and gas industry along with the current economic operating environment, a customer’s 
ability to fulfill its payment obligations can change suddenly and without notice. 

INCOME TAXES 
The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes.  Under this method, deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities are recorded based on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and its tax base. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. The Company’s operations are complex and are located in multiple income tax 
jurisdictions. The computation of the provision for income taxes involves a significant degree of judgement regarding tax 
interpretations, regulations and legislation that are continually changing.  There are matters that have not yet been confirmed 
by taxation authorities; however, management believes the provision for income taxes is adequate. Any changes in the 
estimated amounts are recognized prospectively in the statement of net earnings. 
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CONTROL OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS PARTIALLY OWNED BY THE COMPANY 
Savanna conducts a portion of its operations through limited partnerships in which each of Savanna and an Aboriginal partner 
hold approximately half of a partnership interest. IFRS 10 outlines specific criteria to use in determining whether control of a 
subsidiary exists. There are many aspects of the relationships between the Company and the limited partnerships which it 
partially owns that are considered in determining whether Savanna controls these limited partnerships for financial reporting 
purposes, including: the purpose and design of the partnerships; the activities of the partnerships that generate returns; the 
ability to direct those activities; and exposure to variable returns as a result thereof. These considerations and determinations 
are complex and are based on management’s judgement. 

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
The Company records its financial instruments at fair value on inception with changes in fair value being recorded when 
required by the Company’s classification of such instruments. The calculation of fair value of the Company’s financial 
instruments requires judgement around expected outcomes and is based on many variables including but not limited to credit 
spreads and interest rate spreads. These calculations are complex and require significant judgement around the selection of 
market inputs that are subject to factors outside of management’s control. 

Accounting Policies  

Savanna’s significant accounting policies are set out in Note 3 of the Company’s annual audited consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2014; there were no significant changes to those policies in 2014. 

On January 1, 2014, the Company adopted the amendments to IAS 36, Impairment of Assets, and IFRIC 21, Levies. The 
adoption of these standards did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial results, financial position, or financial 
statement presentation or disclosures. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements  

The following are IFRS changes that have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, which may affect the 
Company, but are not yet effective: 

 IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, was first issued in November 2009 to replace current IAS 39, Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 replaces the current multiple classification and measurement models for financial 
assets and financial liabilities with a single model that has only two classification categories: amortized cost and fair value. 
Hedge accounting remains optional under IFRS 9, but the new model is intended to better reflect risk management 
activities in the financial statements and provide more opportunities to apply hedge accounting. In July 2014, the IASB 
deferred the mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 to January 1, 2018. IFRS 9 is still available for early adoption. The 
Company is continuing to assess the effect of IFRS 9 on its financial results and financial position. 
 

 IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, was issued to supersede IAS 18, Revenue, IAS 11, Construction 
Contracts and related interpretations. IFRS 15 is intended to provide a single principles based model to apply to all 
contracts with customers where there are two approaches to recognizing revenue: over time or at a point in time. IFRS 15 
also includes new disclosure requirements. The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2017, with earlier adoption permitted. The Company has not yet begun the process of assessing the impact that 
the new standard will have on its financial statements or whether to early adopt. 
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Risks and Uncertainties  

The Company’s primary activity is the provision of contract drilling and oilfield services to the oil and gas industry in Canada, 
the United States and Australia.  The demand, price and terms of these services are dependent on the level of activity in this 
industry, which in turn depends on several factors, including, but not limited to: 

 Crude oil, natural gas and other commodity prices, markets and storage levels; 

 Expected rates of production and production declines; 

 Access to land and the discovery of new oil and natural gas reserves; 

 Availability of capital and financing; 

 Exploration and production costs; 

 Pipeline capacity and availability; 

 Manufacturing capacity and availability of supplies for rig construction; and 

 Government imposed regulations, royalties and taxes. 

The following provides a further description of risks associated with the Company's business and the contract drilling and 
oilfield services business in general. This list should not be taken as an exhaustive list, nor should it be taken as a complete 
summary or description of all the risks associated with the Company's business. 

VOLATILITY OF INDUSTRY CONDITIONS  
The demand, pricing and terms for oilfield services largely depend upon the level of industry activity for natural gas and oil 
exploration and development. Industry conditions are influenced by numerous factors over which the Company has no control, 
including: the level of oil and gas prices; expectations about future oil and gas prices; the cost of exploring for, producing and 
delivering oil and gas; the expected rates of declining current production; the discovery rates of new oil and gas reserves; 
available pipeline transportation capacity; development of liquefied natural gas; weather conditions; macroeconomic and 
geopolitical factors, military conflict; sovereign debt crises; regulatory and other economic conditions; and the ability of oil 
and gas companies to raise equity capital or debt financing.  

The level of activity in the oil and gas exploration and production industry is volatile. No assurance can be given that expected 
trends in oil and gas production activities will continue or that demand for oilfield services will reflect the level of activity in 
the industry. Crude oil and natural gas prices have decreased significantly in recent months and are expected to remain volatile 
for the near future as a result of market uncertainties over the supply and demand of these commodities due to concerns of 
oversupply, the current state of the world economies, actions taken by the Organization of the Petroleum Exporting Countries, 
and the ongoing global credit and liquidity concerns. Any prolonged substantial reduction in oil and gas prices would likely 
affect oil and gas production levels and therefore affect the demand for drilling and well servicing services to oil and gas 
customers. A material decline in oil or gas prices or industry activity could have a material adverse effect on the Company's 
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Any addition to or elimination or curtailment of government 
incentives could also have a significant impact on the oilfield services industry.  

WORKFORCE AVAILABILITY 
The Company’s ability to provide reliable and quality services is dependent on its ability to hire and retain a dedicated and 
quality pool of employees. The combination of the technical skills required to work in the oilfield services industry, the 
physically demanding nature of the work and the volatility inherent in the oil and gas sector, may inhibit the Company’s ability 
to employ and retain qualified personnel. Furthermore, in periods of higher activity it may become more difficult to find and 
retain qualified employees, which could limit growth, increase operating costs or have other adverse effects on the Company’s 
operations. The Company strives to retain employees by providing a safe working environment, competitive wages and 
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benefits, employee savings plans and an atmosphere in which all employees are treated equally regarding opportunities for 
advancement. The Aboriginal partnerships that the Company has formed have enhanced access to a large, capable workforce of 
Aboriginal employees. The Company also operates drilling and service rig training programs designed to provide 
inexperienced individuals with the skills required for entry into the oilfield services industry.  

SAFETY PERFORMANCE 
Standards for the prevention of incidents in the oil and gas industry are governed by service company safety policies and 
procedures, accepted industry safety practices, customer specific safety requirements and health and safety legislation. Many 
customers consider safety performance a key factor in selecting oilfield service providers. Deterioration of Savanna’s safety 
performance could result in a decline in the demand for Savanna’s services and could have a material adverse effect on the 
Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

COMPETITION  
The oilfield services industry is highly competitive and the Company competes with a substantial number of companies that 
have greater technical and financial resources. The Company's ability to generate revenue and earnings depends primarily upon 
its ability to win bids in competitive bidding processes and to perform awarded projects within estimated times and costs. 
There can be no assurance that such competitors will not substantially increase the resources devoted to the development and 
marketing of products and services that compete with those of the Company or that new competitors will not enter the various 
markets in which the Company is active. In certain aspects of its business, the Company also competes with a number of small 
and medium-sized companies, which, like the Company, have certain competitive advantages such as low overhead costs and 
specialized regional strengths. Reduced levels of activity in the oil and gas industry can intensify competition and result in 
lower revenue to the Company. Variations in the exploration and development budgets of oil and gas companies which are 
directly affected by fluctuations in energy prices, the cyclical nature and competitiveness of the oil and gas industry and 
governmental regulation, will have an effect upon the Company's ability to generate revenue and earnings.  

ACCESS TO CURRENT AND ADDITIONAL FINANCING  
The Company’s ability to access its revolving credit facility is directly dependent, among other factors, on the Company’s 
compliance with certain financial ratios and other restrictive covenants. Continued low prices for oil and natural gas and 
continued volatility increases the risk that the Company may become non-compliant with these covenants in the future. A 
breach of any of these covenants, which may be affected by events beyond the Company’s control, could constitute an event of 
default which, if not cured or waived, could result in the amounts outstanding on the credit facility to become due and payable 
immediately. An event of default under the Company’s revolving credit facility, if not cured or waived, could also result in the 
Company’s outstanding senior unsecured notes to becoming and payable. In addition, the Company's credit facility may, from 
time to time, impose operating and financial restrictions on the Company that could include restrictions on, the payment of 
dividends, repurchase or making of other distributions with respect to the Company's securities, incurring of additional 
indebtedness, provision of guarantees, the assumption of loans, making of capital expenditures, entering into of 
amalgamations, mergers, take-over bids or disposition of assets, among others. 

The Company may find it necessary in the future to obtain additional debt or equity to support ongoing operations, to 
undertake capital expenditures, to repay existing borrowings or to undertake acquisitions or other business combination 
transactions. As a result of economic volatility, the Company, along with many other issuers, may, from time to time, have 
restricted access to capital and increased borrowing costs. There can be no assurance that additional financing will be available 
to the Company when needed or on terms acceptable to the Company. The Company's inability to raise financing to support 
ongoing operations or to fund capital expenditures or acquisitions could limit the Company's growth and could have a material 
adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  
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SEASONALITY  
In Canada, the level of activity in the oilfield services industry is influenced by seasonal weather patterns. The spring thaw 
makes the ground unstable and less capable of supporting heavy weights. Consequently, municipalities and transportation 
departments enforce road bans that restrict the movement of heavy equipment, thereby reducing drilling and well servicing 
activity levels. In addition, in any geography in which Savanna operates, during excessively rainy periods, equipment moves 
may be delayed, thereby adversely affecting revenues. 

In Canada, there is greater demand for oilfield services provided by the Company in the winter season when the occurrence of 
freezing permits the movement and operation of heavy equipment. Activities tend to increase in the fall and peak in the winter 
months of November through March. However, if an unseasonably warm winter prevents sufficient freezing, the Company 
may not be able to access well sites and its operating results and financial condition may therefore be adversely affected. 
Volatility in the weather and temperature can therefore create unpredictability in activity and utilization rates, which could 
have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

OPERATING RISK AND INSURANCE  
Savanna's operations are subject to all the risks and hazards typically associated with drilling and well servicing operations, 
including but not limited to: equipment defects; malfunction; failures; blowouts; cratering; loss of well control; fire, 
explosions; other environmental hazards; extreme weather conditions; or other acts of nature each of which could result in 
work stoppages, personal injury, loss of life or damage to or destruction of equipment and facilities.     

These risks and hazards could expose the Company to substantial liability for personal injury, loss of life, business interruption, 
property damage or destruction, pollution and other environmental damages. Although the Company has obtained insurance 
against certain of the risks to which it is exposed, such insurance is subject to coverage limits and no assurance can be given 
that such insurance will be adequate to cover the Company's liabilities or will be generally available in the future or, if 
available, that premiums will be commercially reasonable. If the Company were to incur substantial liability and such damages 
were not covered by insurance or were in excess of policy limits; or a customer or insurer failed to meet its indemnification 
obligations; or if the Company were to incur such liability at a time when it is not able to obtain liability insurance, resulting 
losses could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations and cash 
flows.  

RELIANCE ON KEY PERSONNEL  
The success of the Company is dependent upon its key personnel. Any loss of the services of such persons could have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. The Company 
does not have any key person insurance in effect. The ability of the Company to expand its services is dependent upon its 
ability to attract additional qualified employees. The ability to secure the services of additional personnel is constrained in 
times of strong industry activity. 

DEPENDENCE ON CUSTOMERS  
Savanna has a broad customer base and does not depend significantly on any one customer or group of customers. The single 
largest customer accounted for 15% of revenue in 2014. However, in certain geographical operating areas, the Company may 
depend on a smaller number of customers, the loss of any of which could have a material adverse effect on Savanna’s 
operations in those operating areas and may result in significant equipment relocation costs.   
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ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITY  
The Company is subject to the operating risks inherent in the industry, including environmental damage. The Company has 
established programs to address compliance with current environmental standards and monitors its practices concerning the 
handling of environmentally hazardous materials. However, there can be no assurance that the Company's procedures will 
prevent environmental damage occurring from spills of materials handled by the Company or that such damage has not already 
occurred. On occasion, substantial liabilities to third parties may be incurred. The Company may have the benefit of insurance 
maintained by it or the operator; however the Company may become liable for damages against which it cannot adequately 
insure or against which it may elect not to insure because of high costs or other reasons.  

In addition, trends in environmental regulation to increase restrictions and limitations on activities that may impact the 
environment, including the generation and disposal of wastes, the use and handling of chemical substances and laws, 
regulations or treaties concerning climate change, greenhouse gas emissions or other environmental matters could have a 
material adverse impact on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

FOREIGN OPERATIONS 
Some of the Company's current operations and related assets are located in the United States and Australia. In addition, the 
Company's growth plans may contemplate establishing operations in additional foreign countries, including countries where 
the political and economic systems may be less stable than those in North America and Australia.  Risks of foreign operations 
include, but are not necessarily limited to, changes of laws affecting foreign ownership, government participation, taxation, 
royalties, duties, rates of exchange, inflation, repatriation of earnings, social unrest or civil war, acts of terrorism, extortion or 
armed conflict and uncertain political and economic conditions resulting in unfavourable government actions such as 
unfavourable legislation or regulation. While the impact of these factors cannot be accurately predicted, if any of the risks 
materialize, they could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows.  

VULNERABILITY TO MARKET CHANGES  
Fixed costs, including costs associated with operating expenses, leases, labour costs and depreciation will account for a 
significant portion of the Company's costs and expenses. As a result, changes in market conditions which reduce demand for 
the Company's equipment, could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results of 
operations and cash flows.  

POTENTIAL REPLACEMENT OR REDUCED USE OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 
Certain of the Company's equipment may become obsolete or experience a decrease in demand through the introduction of 
competing products or new technologies that are lower in cost; exhibit enhanced performance characteristics; or are determined 
by the market to be more preferable for environmental or other reasons. These changes could have a material adverse effect on 
the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Although the Company makes reasonable 
efforts to keep current with the changing market for oilfield services and technological and regulatory changes, there can be no 
assurance that the Company will be able to identify all changes to competing products of technology. 

TECHNOLOGY RISKS  
Exploration and development of conventional and unconventional oil and natural gas reserves requires high performance 
drilling rigs. The ability of the Company to meet customer demands in respect of performance and cost will depend upon 
continuous improvements in operating equipment. There can be no assurance that the Company will be successful in its efforts 
in this regard or that it will have the resources available to meet this continuing demand. Failure by the Company to do so 
could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. No 
assurances can be given that competitors will not achieve technological advantages over the Company. The Company relies on 
proprietary technology in respect of aspects of its oilfield services, particularly coiled tubing drilling. While the Company has 
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been granted patent protection in Canada and in the United States in respect of certain of such technology, no assurances can 
be given that the proprietary nature of the technology can be adequately protected.  

DEPENDENCE ON SUPPLIERS  
Failure of suppliers to deliver equipment in a timely and efficient manner could be detrimental to the Company's ability to keep 
customers and to grow. In addition, certain equipment is manufactured specifically for the Company and the Company is 
dependent upon the continued availability of the manufacturer and the maintenance of the quality of manufacture. No 
assurances can be given that the Company will be successful in maintaining its required supply of equipment.  

ALTERNATIVES TO AND CHANGING DEMAND FOR PETROLEUM PRODUCTS  
Fuel conservation measures, alternative fuel requirements, increasing consumer demand for alternatives to oil and gas, and 
technological advances in fuel economy and energy generation devices could reduce the demand for crude oil, natural gas and 
other liquid hydrocarbons. The Company cannot predict the impact of changing demand for oil and gas products, and any 
major changes could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows.  

GOVERNMENT LAWS AND INDUSTRY REGULATIONS 
The Company’s operations are subject to numerous laws as well as industry regulations and guidelines many of which are 
related to health and safety, the conduct of operations, transportation and the environment. Some of the laws, regulations and 
guidelines that apply to operations also authorize the recovery of natural resource damages by the government, injunctive 
relief, and the imposition of stop, control, remediation and abandonment orders. While management believes that its businesses 
will be operated in accordance with applicable laws, the Company will remain subject to a varied and complex body of laws 
and regulations that both public officials and private individuals may seek to enforce. The costs arising from compliance with 
such laws, regulations and guidelines may be material to the Company. 

Any regulatory changes that impose additional operating or environmental restrictions or requirements on the Company or its 
customers could result in increased operating costs and decreased demand for the Company’s services, which could have a 
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.   

FAILURE TO REALIZE ANTICIPATED BENEFITS OF ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS  
The Company considers acquisitions and dispositions of businesses and assets in the ordinary course of business.  Achieving 
the benefits of acquisitions depends in part on successfully consolidating functions and integrating operations and procedures 
in a timely and efficient manner as well as the Company's ability to realize the anticipated growth opportunities and synergies 
from combining the acquired businesses and operations with those of the Company.  The integration of acquired businesses 
may require substantial management effort, time and resources and may divert management's focus from other strategic 
opportunities and operational matters.  Management continually assesses the value and contribution of services provided and 
assets required to provide such services.  In this regard, non-core assets are periodically disposed of, so that the Company can 
focus its efforts and resources more efficiently.  Depending on the state of the market for such non-core assets, certain non-core 
assets of the Company, if disposed of, could realize less than their carrying value in the financial statements of the Company.  

MANAGEMENT OF GROWTH  
The Company may be subject to growth related risks including capacity constraints and pressure on its internal systems and 
controls.  The ability of the Company to manage growth effectively will require it to continue to implement and improve its 
operational and financial systems and to expand, train and manage its employee base.  The inability of the Company to deal 
with this growth could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations and 
cash flows.  
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CASH FLOW RISK 
The Company will require sufficient cash flow in the future in order to service and repay its indebtedness. The Company`s 
ability to generate sufficient cash flow to meet these obligations is to a certain extent, subject to global economic, financial, 
competitive and other factors that may be beyond its control. If the Company is unable to attain future borrowings or generate 
cash flow from operations in an amount sufficient to service and repay its indebtedness, the Company will need to refinance or 
be in default under the agreements governing its indebtedness and could be forced to reduce or delay investments and capital 
expenditures or to dispose of material assets. Such refinancing or alternative measures may not be available on favourable 
terms or at all. The inability to service, repay and/or refinance its indebtedness could have a material adverse effect on the 
Company's business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.  

CREDIT RISK 
Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to customers and partners in 
the form of outstanding accounts and notes receivable, and suppliers in the form of deposits placed on long-lead items. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets.  

As stated above, the carrying amount of accounts receivable reflects management’s assessment of the credit risk associated 
with its customers. The Company generally grants unsecured credit to its customers; however, the Company applies rigorous 
evaluation procedures to all new customers and analyzes and reviews the financial health of its current customers on an 
ongoing basis. The allowance for doubtful accounts and past due receivables are reviewed by management on a monthly basis. 
Accounts receivable are considered for impairment on a case-by-case basis when they are past due or when objective evidence 
is received that a customer will default. The Company takes into consideration the customer’s payment history, their credit 
worthiness and the current economic environment in which the customer operates to assess impairment. The Company 
accounts for a specific bad debt provision when management considers that the expected recovery is less than the actual 
amount receivable. When a receivable balance is considered uncollectible it is written off against the allowance for doubtful 
accounts. Subsequent recovery of amounts previously written off is included in net earnings. Based on the nature of its 
operations, Savanna will always have a concentration of credit risk as a substantial portion of the Company’s accounts 
receivable are with customers in the oil and gas industry and are subject to normal industry credit risks.  

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK 
The Company is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations as revenues, expenses and working capital derived from its foreign 
operations are denominated in U.S. dollars and Australian dollars. In addition, the Company's U.S. and Australian subsidiaries 
are subject to translation gains and losses on consolidation. Realized foreign exchange gains and losses are included in net 
earnings while foreign exchange gains and losses arising on the translation of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of 
the Company’s foreign operations are included in OCI. The Company also holds U.S. and Australian dollar denominated debt. 
The Company’s U.S. dollar debt is used to manage the exposure to foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the 
translation of its U.S. functional currency operations included in OCI. 

INTEREST RATE RISK 
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on a portion of its notes receivable and long-term debt and does not currently hold 
any financial instruments that mitigate this risk. The Company’s floating-rate notes receivable are subject to interest rate cash 
flow risk, as the cash received will fluctuate with changes in market interest rates. The Company’s fixed-rate notes receivable 
and fixed-rate debt are subject to interest rate price risk, as the values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest 
rates.  Floating-rate debt is subject to interest rate cash flow risk, as the required cash flows to service the debt will fluctuate 
with changes in market interest rates. The remainder of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are not exposed to 
interest rate risk. 
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LITIGATION 
In the normal course of the Company's business, it may become involved in, named as a party to, or be the subject of, various 
legal proceedings, including regulatory proceedings, tax proceedings and legal actions, related to personal injuries, property 
damage, property tax, the environment and contract disputes. The outcome of outstanding, pending or future proceedings 
cannot be predicted with certainty and may be determined adversely to the Company and as a result, could have a material 
adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. 

DIVIDENDS 
The amount of future cash dividends paid by the Company, if any, will be subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors of 
the Company and may vary depending on a variety of factors and conditions existing from time to time, including fluctuations 
in capital expenditure requirements, debt service requirements, operating costs, foreign exchange rates and the satisfaction of 
the liquidity and solvency tests imposed by applicable corporate law for the declaration and payment of dividends. Depending 
on these and various other factors, many of which will be beyond the control of the Company, the amount of dividends paid by 
the Company could be reduced or suspended entirely. 

The market value of the common shares of the Company may deteriorate if cash dividends are reduced or suspended. 
Furthermore, the future treatment of dividends for tax purposes will be subject to the nature and composition of dividends paid 
by the Company and potential legislative and regulatory changes. 

To the extent that external sources of capital, including the issuance of additional common shares of the Company, become 
limited or unavailable, the ability of the Company to make the necessary capital investments to maintain or expand its business 
will be impaired.  To the extent that the Company is required to use funds from operations to finance capital expenditures or 
acquisitions, the cash available for dividends may be reduced. 

MARKET PRICE OF COMMON SHARES 
The trading price of securities of oilfield services issuers is subject to substantial volatility.  This volatility is often based on 
factors both related and unrelated to the financial performance or prospects of the issuers involved.  The market price of the 
common shares of the Company could be subject to significant fluctuations in response to variations in the Company's 
operating results, financial condition, liquidity and other internal factors.  Factors that could affect the market price of the 
common shares of the Company that are unrelated to the Company's performance include domestic and global commodity 
prices and market perceptions of the attractiveness of particular industries.  Accordingly, the price at which the common shares 
of the Company will trade cannot be accurately predicted. 

DILUTION 
The Company may complete future acquisitions or enter into financings or other transactions involving the issuance of 
securities of the Company which may be dilutive. 

BREACH OF CONFIDENTIALITY 
In the normal course of the Company’s business the Company may discuss potential business relationships, transactions with 
third parties, financing solutions or other activities and at which time the Company may disclose confidential information 
relating to the business, operations or affairs of the Company.  The Company takes commercially reasonable measures to 
ensure confidentiality agreements are signed by third parties prior to the disclosure of any confidential information or to 
otherwise ensure the confidentiality of such information is maintained; however a breach or failure of these measures could put 
the Company at competitive risk and may cause significant damage to its business. The harm to the Company's business from a 
breach of confidentiality cannot presently be quantified, but may be material and may not be compensable in damages. There is 
no assurance that, in the event of a breach of confidentiality, the Company will be able to obtain equitable remedies, such as 
injunctive relief, from a court of competent jurisdiction in a timely manner, if at all, in order to prevent or mitigate any damage 
to its business that such a breach of confidentiality may cause. 



  M A N A G E M E N T ’ S  D I S C U S S I O N  A N D  A N A L Y S I S  

S a v a n n a  E n e r g y  S e r v i c e s  C o r p .   2 0 1 4  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  42 

INCOME TAXES 
The Company makes all required income tax filings and believes that it is in full compliance with all applicable tax legislation 
of each of the jurisdictions in which it operates.  However, such filings are subject to reassessment by the applicable taxation 
authority and in the event of a reassessment of the Company, such reassessment may have a negative impact on current and 
future taxes payable.  Income tax laws relating to various matters, including dividends, may in the future be changed or 
interpreted in a manner that adversely affects the Company. Furthermore, tax authorities having jurisdiction over the Company 
may disagree with how the Company calculates its taxes or could change administrative practices to the Company's detriment. 

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION MAY PROVE INACCURATE  
Shareholders and prospective investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the Company's forward-looking 
information.  By its nature, forward-looking information involves numerous assumptions, known and unknown risk and 
uncertainties, of both a general and specific nature, that could cause actual results to differ materially from those suggested by 
the forward-looking information or contribute to the possibility that predictions, forecasts or projections will prove to be 
materially inaccurate.  

Additional information on the risks, assumptions and uncertainties are found under the heading "Cautionary Statement 
Regarding Forward-Looking Information and Statements" in this MD&A. 

 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Internal Controls                        

over Financial Reporting  

The Interim Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) have designed or caused to be designed 
under their supervision, disclosure controls and procedures (“DC&P”) to provide reasonable assurance that: (i) material 
information relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to the CEO and the CFO by others 
within those entities, particularly during the periods in which the annual and interim filings of the Company are being 
prepared; and (ii) information required to be disclosed by the Company in its annual filings, interim filings or other reports 
filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time period 
specified in securities legislation. As of December 31, 2014, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s DC&P was 
conducted by and under the supervision of the Company’s management, including the CEO and the CFO. Based on this 
evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that the Company’s DC&P are effective at December 31, 2014 to provide 
reasonable assurance that: (i) material information relating to the Company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made 
known to the CEO and the CFO by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which the annual and interim 
filings of the Company are being prepared; and (ii) information required to be disclosed by the Company in its annual filings, 
interim filings or other reports filed or submitted by it under securities legislation is recorded, processed, summarized and 
reported within the time period specified in securities legislation. 

The CEO and CFO do not expect that the DC&P will prevent or detect all errors, misstatements and fraud but are designed to 
provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives. A control system, no matter how well designed or operated, can 
only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. 

In addition to DC&P, the CEO and CFO have designed internal controls over financial reporting (“ICFR”), or caused them to 
be designed under their supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS. The design and effectiveness of these 
controls have been evaluated by and under the supervision of the Company’s management, including the CEO and the CFO, 
using the framework and criteria established in the Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
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Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, the CEO and CFO have concluded that the 
Company’s ICFR as of December 31, 2014 are effective to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS.  

The Company’s ICFR may not prevent or detect all errors, misstatements and fraud.  The design of internal controls must take 
into account cost-benefit constraints.  A control system, no matter how well designed or operated, can only provide reasonable, 
not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. While the Company is continually enhancing its 
ICFR, no material changes were made during the period beginning October 1, 2014, and ending December 31, 2014, that have 
materially affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company’s ICFR. 

 

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information                           

and Statements 

Certain statements contained in this MD&A, including statements related to the Company’s 2015 capital commitments and 
other strategic or restructuring initiatives, the expected timing and location for the commencement of operations of rigs 
currently under construction, the expectation of significant fixed cost reductions in 2015 relative to 2014, expectations of 
activity levels for Savanna in 2015, the outlook for future oil and gas demand and prices, cyclical and seasonal industry 
fundamentals, drilling and completion activity levels, the expectation of uncertain oil and gas industry activity in North 
America in 2015 and into 2016 and its effect on the oilfield services industry and Savanna, the expectation that the Company’s 
newly built rigs and contracted days on its drilling and well servicing fleets should help mitigate general activity declines on 
the rest of its drilling and service rig fleets, the expectation that the Company’s take or pay contract status on the majority of its 
rigs in Australia should also mitigate the impact of activity reductions in 2015, and statements that contain words such as 
“could”, “should”, “can”, “anticipate”, “expect”, “believe”, “will”, “may”, “likely”, “estimate”, “predict”, “potential”, 
“continue”, “maintain”, “retain”, “grow”, and similar expressions and statements relating to matters that are not historical facts 
constitute “forward-looking information” within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legislation and “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of the United States Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. 

These statements are based on certain assumptions and analysis made by the Company in light of its experience and its 
perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future developments as well as other factors it believes are 
appropriate in the circumstances. In particular, expected timing and location for the commencement of operations of rigs 
currently under construction is premised on Savanna’s past experience in building and deploying rigs, customer contracts 
currently in place and current advice from customers. The expectation of significant fixed cost reductions in 2015 relative to 
2014 is premised on the reduction in fixed cost positions and salary and wage roll-backs implemented to date in 2015. The 
Company’s expectations of activity levels for Savanna in 2015, its outlook for future oil and gas demand and prices and 
drilling and completion activity levels, its expectation of uncertain oil and gas industry activity in North America in 2015 and 
into 2016 and its effect on the oilfield services industry and Savanna, the expectation that the Company’s newly built rigs and 
contracted days on its drilling and well servicing fleets should help mitigate general activity declines on the rest of its drilling 
and service rig fleets, and its expectation that the Company’s take or pay contract status on the majority of its rigs in Australia 
should also mitigate the impact of activity reductions in 2015 are premised on industry estimates, actual results experienced to 
date in 2015, customer contracts and commitments, the Company’s expectations for its customers’ capital budgets, the status of 
current negotiations with its customers, and the number of contracted rigs deployed into Australia and North America in the 
last five months. Whether actual results, performance or achievements will conform to the Company’s expectations and 
predictions is subject to a number of known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ 
materially from the Company’s expectations.  Such risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to: fluctuations in the 
price and demand for oil and natural gas; fluctuations in the level of oil and natural gas exploration and development activities; 
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fluctuations in the demand for well servicing, oilfield rentals and contract drilling; the effects of weather conditions on 
operations and facilities; the existence of competitive operating risks inherent in well servicing, oilfield rentals and contract 
drilling; general economic, market or business conditions; changes in laws or regulations, including taxation, environmental 
and currency regulations; the lack of availability of qualified personnel or management; the other risk factors set forth under 
the heading “Risks and Uncertainties” in the Company’s Annual Report and under the heading “Risk Factors” in the 
Company’s Annual Information Form and other unforeseen conditions which could impact on the use of services supplied by 
the Company. 

Included herein is an estimate of cash capital expenditures for the remainder of 2015.  To the extent such estimates constitute 
future oriented financial information or a financial outlook, such future oriented financial information or financial outlook is 
included herein to provide readers with an understanding of the Company's anticipated capital expenditures for 2015.  Readers 
are cautioned that the information may not be appropriate for other purposes. 

All of the forward-looking information and statements made in this MD&A are qualified by this cautionary statement and there 
can be no assurance that the actual results or developments anticipated by the Company will be realized or, even if 
substantially realized, that they will have the expected consequences to or effects on the Company or its business or operations. 
Except as may be required by law, the Company assumes no obligation to update publicly any such forward-looking 
information and statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.
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Management’s Responsibility for Financial Information  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and all information in the Annual Report have been prepared by 
management and approved by the Board of Directors of Savanna. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and, where appropriate, reflect management’s best estimates and 
judgements. Management is responsible for the accuracy, integrity and objectivity of the consolidated financial statements 
within reasonable limits of materiality and for the consistency of financial data included in the text of the Annual Report with 
that in the consolidated financial statements. 

To assist management in the discharge of these responsibilities, the Company maintains a system of internal controls designed 
to provide reasonable assurance that accounting records are reliable, transactions are properly authorized and assets are 
safeguarded from loss or unauthorized use. 

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board of Directors, with all of its members being independent directors. The Audit 
Committee meets with management, as well as with the external auditors, to satisfy itself that management is properly 
discharging its financial reporting responsibilities and to review the consolidated financial statements and the auditor’s report. 
The Audit Committee reports its findings to the Board of Directors for consideration in approving the consolidated financial 
statements for presentation to the shareholders. The external auditors have direct access to the Audit Committee of the Board 
of Directors. 

The consolidated financial statements have been audited independently by Deloitte LLP on behalf of the Company in 
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Their report outlines the nature of their audits and expresses 
their opinion on the consolidated financial statements.  

 

 

Dwayne LaMontagne     Darcy Draudson 

Interim President and Chief Executive Officer     Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer 
Calgary, Alberta       Calgary, Alberta 
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Independent Auditor’s Report  

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAVANNA ENERGY SERVICES CORP.: 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Savanna Energy Services Corp., which comprise the 
consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated statements of net earnings (loss), 
statements of comprehensive income (loss), statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.  

OPINION 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Savanna 
Energy Services Corp. as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then 
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.  

 

 

 

Chartered Accountants          

March 4, 2015  
Calgary, Alberta 
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Consolidated Statements of Net Earnings (Loss)  

(Stated in thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts)     

    

For the years ended December 31    2014  2013 

REVENUE    791,890  696,609 

COST OF SERVICES     

 Operating expenses    576,713  494,949 

 Share-based compensation (Note 10)    584  1,062 

 Depreciation and amortization (Note 11)    103,946  84,375 

     681,243  580,386 

GROSS PROFIT    110,647  116,223 

General and administrative expenses (Notes 9, 10 and 11)    58,225  59,029 

Impairment losses (Note 20)    393,879  - 

Finance expenses  (Note 12)    14,917  14,929 

Other income (Note 13)    (2,429)  (1,833)

EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES    (353,945)  44,098 

Income tax (recovery) expense (Note 14)    (101,920)  10,162 

NET EARNINGS (LOSS)    (252,025)  33,936 

NET EARNINGS (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:     

  Shareholders of the Company    (249,308)  30,243 

  Non-controlling interests (Note 8)    (2,717)  3,693 

NET EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE     

Attributable to the shareholders of the Company      

  Basic - net earnings (loss) (Note 27(h))    (2.79)  0.35 

  Diluted - net earnings (loss) (Note 27(h))    (2.79)  0.35 

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

(Stated in thousands of Canadian dollars)    

    

For the years ended December 31   2014  2013 

NET EARNINGS (LOSS)   (252,025)  33,936 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)    

  Foreign currency translation adjustment   20,936  5,667 

  Unrealized foreign exchange loss on net investment hedge   (6,283)  (4,143)

  Tax on foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 14)   540  628 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)   (236,832)  36,088 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:    

 Shareholders of the Company   (234,115)  32,395 

 Non-controlling interests (Note 8)   (2,717)  3,693 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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Consolidated Balance Sheets 

(Stated in thousands of Canadian dollars)   

At December 31  2014  2013 

ASSETS   

Current   

 Cash  6,306  20,772 

 Accounts receivable (Note 15)  149,416  153,862 

 Income taxes receivable (Note 14)  1,703  2,445 

 Inventory (Note 16)  6,470  3,985 

 Prepaid expenses and deposits (Note 17)  2,385  3,549 

 Assets held for sale (Note 18 and 20)  16,039  - 

   182,319  184,613 

Notes receivable (Note 19)  4,454  7,300 

Property and equipment (Note 20)  946,578  1,185,254 

Deferred income tax assets (Note 14)  50,574  3,818 

Intangible assets and goodwill (Note 20)  -  10,617 

   1,183,925  1,391,602 

    

LIABILITIES   

Current   

 Bank indebtedness (Note 22)  -  10,236 

 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 23)  101,215  87,885 

 Income taxes payable (Note 14)  5,064  94 

 Current portion of long-term debt (Note 26)  4,499  2,353 

   110,778  100,568 

Deferred revenue (Note 25)  2,637  1,480 

Long-term debt (Note 26)  343,364  240,987 

Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 14)  64,212  127,640 

   520,991  470,675 

    

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY   

Share capital (Note 27)  1,007,278  995,918 

Share-based payment reserve  31,648  30,552 

Deficit  (411,095)  (129,615)

Foreign currency translation reserve  9,963  (5,230)

Non-controlling interests (Note 8)  25,140  29,302 

   662,934  920,927 

    

   1,183,925  1,391,602 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

 
Approved by the Board of Directors: 

 

 

James Saunders     Kevin Nugent 
Director       Director 
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity 

(Stated in thousands of Canadian dollars)     

    

For the years ended December 31    2014  2013 

SHARE CAPITAL (Note 27(b))     

  Balance, beginning of year    995,918  975,571 

  Issued for cash on exercise of stock options    2,459  8,673 

  Fair value of stock options exercised    833  3,042 

  Issued through dividend reinvestment plan    8,068  8,632 

  Balance, end of year    1,007,278  995,918 

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT RESERVE     

  Balance, beginning of year    30,552  30,503 

  Share-based compensation  (Note 10)    1,924  3,091 

  Fair value of options exercised (reclassified to share capital)    (833)  (3,042)

  Changes due to changes in foreign exchange rates    5  - 

  Balance, end of year    31,648  30,552 

DEFICIT     

  Balance, beginning of year    (129,615)  (128,520)

  Dividends declared  (Note 27(b))    (32,172)  (31,338)

  Net earnings (loss) attributable to shareholders of the Company    (249,308)  30,243 

  Balance, end of year    (411,095)  (129,615)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE     

  Balance, beginning of year    (5,230)  (7,382)

  Foreign currency translation adjustment    20,936  5,667 

  Unrealized foreign exchange loss on net investment hedge    (6,283)  (4,143)

  Tax on foreign currency translation adjustments (Note 14(b))    540  628 

  Balance, end of year    9,963  (5,230)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS     

  Balance, beginning of year    29,302  27,409 

  Partnership contributions (Note 8)    3,000  2,000 

  Partnership distributions (Note 8)    (4,445)  (3,800)

  Net earnings (loss) (Note 8)    (2,717)  3,693 

  Balance, end of year    25,140  29,302 

 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY     662,934  920,927 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows   

(Stated in thousands of Canadian dollars)     

     

For the years ended December 31    2014  2013 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

  Earnings (Loss) before income taxes    (353,945)  44,098 

  Adjustments for:     

   Share-based compensation (Note 10)    (784)  7,044 

   Depreciation and amortization (Note 11)    106,247  86,658 

   Impairment losses (Note 20)    393,879  - 

   Finance expenses (Note 12)    14,917  14,929 

   Interest paid    (14,154)  (13,750)

   Income taxes paid    (2,346)  (1,908)

   Income taxes received    1,723  2,235 

   Loss (gain) on disposal of assets (Note 13)    951  (1,713)

      146,488  137,593 

Change in non-cash working capital (Note 29)    8,010  (3,838)

    154,498  133,755 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

  Purchase of property and equipment (Note 20)    (246,904)  (124,870)

  Proceeds on disposal of assets (Note 20)    1,536  5,589 

  Change in non-cash working capital (Note 29)    10,085  3,143 

  Change in notes receivable (Note 19)    1,578  816 

  Interest received (Note 19)    1,267  675 

    (232,438)  (114,647)

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

  Shares issued on exercise of options (Note 27)    2,459  8,673 

  Dividends paid (Note 27)    (24,057)  (22,628)

  Issuance of long-term debt    132,849  92,369 

  Debt issue costs    (549)  (1,036)

  Repayment of long-term debt     (36,064)  (99,413)

  Partnership contributions from non-controlling interests (Note 8)    3,000  2,000 

  Partnership distributions to non-controlling interests (Note 8)    (4,445)  (3,800)

    73,193  (23,835)

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash    517  (305)

Decrease in cash    (4,230)  (5,032)

Cash, net of bank indebtedness, beginning of year    10,536  15,568 

CASH, END OF YEAR    6,306  10,536 

Represented by:  

  Cash  6,306  20,772 

 Bank indebtedness (Note 22)    -  (10,236)

    6,306  10,536 

       
The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.  
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. 
(Stated in thousands, except per share amounts) 

 

Note 1. Description of Business 
Savanna Energy Services Corp. (the “Company” or “Savanna”) was incorporated under the Alberta Business Corporations Act 
on March 22, 2001, to provide a variety of services in the oil and natural gas industry. The Company’s head office is located in 
Calgary, Alberta at 800, 311 – 6th Avenue S.W. Savanna operates through a number of wholly-owned subsidiaries and limited 
partnerships partially owned by the Company, all of which are managed through three reportable segments: corporate, services, 
and drilling. 

         % Interest 

Subsidiary Country Segment 2014 2013

Savanna Energy Services Corp. (parent company) Canada Corporate  100  100 

Savanna Energy Services (U.S.A.) Corp. United States Corporate  100  100 

Savanna Energy Services PTY Ltd. Australia Corporate, Services, Drilling  100  100 

Savanna Well Servicing Inc. Canada Services  100  100 

Savanna Well Servicing Corp. United States Services  100  100 

D&D Oilfield Rentals Corp. Canada Services  100  100 

Savanna Drilling Limited Partnership Canada Drilling  100  100 

Savanna Drilling LLC United States Drilling  100  100 

Savanna Energy Services Limited Partnership #1 Canada Drilling  50  50 

Savanna Energy Services Limited Partnership #2 Canada Drilling  50  50 

Savanna Energy Services Limited Partnership #5 Canada Drilling, Services  50  50 

Savanna Energy Services Limited Partnership #6 Canada Drilling  50  50 

Savanna Energy Services Limited Partnership #7 Canada Drilling  50  50 

Savanna Energy Services Limited Partnership #8 Canada Drilling  50  50 

Savanna Energy Services Limited Partnership #9 Canada Services  50  50 

Savanna Energy Services Limited Partnership #10 Canada Services  50  50 

Savanna Energy Services Limited Partnership #11 Canada Services  50  50 

Fort McKay - Savanna Energy Services Limited Partnership Canada Drilling, Services  49  49 

Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements of Savanna have been prepared by management, on a historical cost basis, other than as 
disclosed in Note 3(o), in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and are presented in thousands of Canadian dollars. The significant accounting policies 
adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are set out in Note 3. Unless otherwise stated, these policies 
have been consistently applied to all the periods presented. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the 
Company, its subsidiaries and the limited partnerships partially owned by the Company. Savanna’s Aboriginal partners’ shares 
in the equity and net earnings of the limited partnerships partially owned by the Company are reported as non-controlling 
interests. All inter-company transactions, balances, revenues and expenses have been eliminated. The Company’s net earnings 
(loss) and cash flows include the results of any acquisitions from their dates of acquisition. 
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The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on March 4, 2015.  

Note 3. Significant Accounting Policies 

A) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and assets that meet the definition of a business under IFRS are accounted for using the acquisition 
method. The consideration for each acquisition is measured at the date of exchange as the aggregate of the fair values of assets 
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Company. The identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognized at their fair 
values at the acquisition date, except for deferred income taxes, employee benefit arrangements, share-based compensation, 
and assets held for sale, which are measured in accordance with their applicable IFRS. Any excess consideration over the fair 
value of the identifiable net assets is recognized as goodwill. Acquisition-related costs, other than those associated with the 
issuance of debt or equity, are recognized in earnings as incurred.  

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination 
occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional 
amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect 
new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have 
affected the amounts recognized as of that date. The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date 
the Company obtains complete information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date up to a 
maximum of one year.  

B) REVENUE RECOGNITION 
Revenue from drilling, well servicing and other oilfield services is recognized upon delivery of service to customers and is 
calculated on a daily or hourly basis. Cost recoveries billed to customers are included as both revenue and operating expenses 
and are not netted. Amounts billed with respect to initial transportation, mobilization, or other rig-up costs are deferred and 
recognized over the term of the related contract. The customer contract terms do not include a provision for post-delivery 
obligations. 

All of the Company’s recent long-term contracts in Australia provide for an amount, which is due on rig commissioning, to 
cover transportation, mobilization and rig-up costs incurred to get rigs into the Australian market, some of which form part of 
the capital cost of the rigs. The amounts received or receivable are recognized against operating costs as incurred or, in the case 
of capital costs, over the term of the related contract. 

Interest revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably. Interest revenue is accrued on a monthly basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and 
at the applicable effective interest rate. 

Lease revenue from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. All of the Company’s 
revenue from operating leases is earned in limited partnerships partially owned by the Company through lease arrangements 
with Savanna. These inter-company transactions eliminate on consolidation. 
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C) CASH AND BANK INDEBTEDNESS 
Cash consists of cash held in banks. Bank indebtedness consists of temporary overdrafts, operating facilities and cheques 
written but not cashed by the payee. Classification as cash or bank indebtedness depends on the financial institution in which 
the consolidated balance is held, except for balances held through partially owned limited partnerships. Balances held through 
partially owned limited partnerships are classified as cash or bank indebtedness on an individual entity basis.  

D) INVENTORY 
The Company’s inventory includes parts and operating supplies valued at the lower of cost, determined on a weighted-average 
basis, and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less costs to sell.  

E) INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL 
Intangible assets consisted of costs associated with securing Savanna’s intellectual property rights and the values attributed to 
customer relationships and non-compete agreements acquired through business combinations. Intangible assets are carried at 
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Intangible assets were amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
expected period of benefit as follows:  

Patent 7 years straight-line with no residual value 

Customer relationships 5 years straight-line with no residual value 

Non-compete agreements 2 years straight-line with no residual value 

 
Intangible assets were reviewed annually with respect to their useful lives, or more frequently, if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired. Any impairment is charged to earnings in the period in which it is 
determined and the effects of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis.  

Goodwill represents the excess consideration over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in a business 
combination. Goodwill is not amortized and is carried at cost less impairment losses. 

F) PROPERTY, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and are derecognized on 
disposal or when there is no future economic benefit expected from their use or disposal. Gains and losses on derecognition of 
property and equipment are recognized in net earnings (loss). Depreciation is determined using the straight-line method and 
begins when the asset is available for use, except for certain components of drilling rigs and equipment which are depreciated 
based on the number of drilling days and certain components of well servicing rigs and equipment which are depreciated based 
on the number of operating hours as follows: 

Buildings 20 years straight-line with no residual value 

Field equipment – non-drilling or well servicing 5 to 17 years straight-line with residual values of 0% to 20% 

Drilling rigs and equipment 1,000 to 5,000 drilling days with residual values of 0% to 20% 

Well servicing rigs and equipment 10,000 to 35,000 operating hours with residual values of 20% 

Furniture and office equipment 3 to 5 years straight-line with no residual value 

Vehicles 3 to 5 years straight-line with no residual value 

 
Costs related to equipment under construction are capitalized when incurred, including directly attributable borrowing costs; all 
other borrowing costs are expensed.  No depreciation is provided on assets under construction until those assets are 
substantially complete and available for use. 
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The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, with the effect of any changes in 
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continued use. Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amounts or their fair value less costs to sell and are no longer depreciated. 

G) IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 
At the end of each reporting period, management assesses the carrying amounts of non-financial assets for indications of 
impairment. Indications of impairment include an ongoing lack of profitability and significant changes in technology. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, 
if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. The Company’s CGUs are aggregated 
geographically based on asset type. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.  

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced 
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in earnings. If the impairment loss relates to a CGU it 
is first allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to reduce the carrying amounts 
of the other assets of the CGU.  

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to the revised estimate 
of its recoverable amount. However, the carrying amount is increased only to the extent that it does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognized immediately in earnings. Impairment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed. 

H) CURRENT TAXES 
Current income taxes payable are based on taxable earnings for the year. Taxable earnings differs from earnings as reported in 
the consolidated statements of (loss) earnings and comprehensive income because of items of income or expense that are 
taxable or deductible in different years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is 
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Current taxes are 
recognized in earnings except when they relate to items that are not part of the determination of earnings, in which case the tax 
is recognized net of those items.  

I) DEFERRED TAXES 
The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes.  Under this method, deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities are recorded based on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and its tax base. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred taxes are recognized in earnings except when they relate to items that are 
not part of the determination of earnings, in which case the tax is recognized net of those items. 
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Deferred tax liabilities are also recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with the Company’s interests in joint 
ventures. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with these interests are only recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary 
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. 

The Company’s deferred tax balances have been measured based on tax rates, which have been enacted or substantively 
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and that are expected to apply when the asset is recognized or the liability is settled. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current 
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its 
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.  

J) LEASES 
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.  

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the 
present value of the minimum lease payments with the corresponding liability included in long-term debt as a finance lease 
obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between interest expense and a reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a 
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another 
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. 
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Lease 
incentives, if received, are recognized as a reduction of the related expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  

K) PROVISIONS 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a 
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of 
those cash flows. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 
third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of 
the receivable can be measured reliably. There were no material provisions requiring recognition for the years ended December 
31, 2014 or 2013. 

L)  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 
The Company follows the fair value method of accounting for equity-settled stock options and phantom share entitlements 
(“PSEs”) settled in cash, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, whereby compensation expense is recognized for each 
tranche of options or PSEs on the date of grant and amortized over the vesting period based on the Company’s estimate of 
options or PSEs expected to vest.  At the end of each reporting period, the Company adjusts the fair value of its PSEs and 
revisits its estimate of the number of options or PSEs expected to vest. The effect of a revision to the original estimates, if any, 
is recognized in earnings such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate. 
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Deferred share units (“DSUs”), restricted share units (“RSUs”) and performance share units (“PSUs”) that are vested or are 
expected to vest are measured at fair value at each reporting period on a mark-to-market basis; any changes in the fair value of 
DSUs, RSUs or PSUs or in the estimate of the number of DSUs, RSUs or PSUs expected to vest are recognized immediately in 
earnings.  

Stock options are settled through the issuance of shares upon exercise. PSEs are settled in cash upon exercise based on the 
differential between the price on exercise and the grant price. DSUs are settled in cash upon exercise or on the date a director 
ceases to be a director of the Company or within 120 days of termination of an officer. RSUs are settled in cash upon vesting. 
PSUs which meet the performance and other vesting criteria are settled in cash or shares, at the option of the Company, upon 
exercise.  

The recognition of stock options results in share-based compensation expense with a corresponding increase to share-based 
payment reserve. Upon exercise of the option both the consideration paid by the employee and the related share-based payment 
reserve is included in share capital. The recognition and valuation of DSUs, RSUs, PSUs and PSEs results in share-based 
compensation expense and corresponding liabilities which have been included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the 
consolidated balance sheet. 

M) EARNINGS PER SHARE 
Earnings per share are calculated using the weighted-average number of shares outstanding in the period.  Diluted earnings per 
share are calculated by adjusting the weighted-average number of shares outstanding for the dilutive effect of outstanding 
share-based payments granted under the Company’s various share-based incentive plans.  

N) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION 
The Company’s functional currency and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements is Canadian 
Dollars. Transactions entered into by the Company’s subsidiaries are recorded in their respective functional currency, which is 
the currency of the economic environment in which they operate. Monetary assets and liabilities relating to transactions in 
currencies other than an entity’s functional currency are initially recorded at the rate of exchange in effect at the transaction 
date. Gains and losses resulting from subsequent changes in foreign exchange rates are recorded in earnings for the period. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities relating to foreign denominated transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange in effect at 
the transaction date and are not adjusted for subsequent changes in foreign exchange rates. 

Savanna’s foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency as follows: assets and liabilities are translated into 
Canadian dollars at rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses are translated using average 
rates for the period. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation of the Company’s foreign operations are recorded as 
foreign currency translation adjustments in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). Amounts included in foreign currency 
translation reserve will be recognized in earnings when there is a reduction in the net investment of the foreign operation on a 
pro-rata basis. Advances made to its foreign operations for which settlement is not planned or anticipated in the foreseeable 
future are considered part of the Company’s net investment in its foreign operations. Accordingly, unrealized gains and losses 
from these advances are also recorded in OCI.  

O) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
All of the Company’s financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the balance sheet and classified into the 
following categories:  fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) financial assets and financial liabilities, loans or receivables, 
held to maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, and other financial liabilities. Subsequent measurements of the 
financial instruments are based on their classification.  Unrealized gains and losses on FVTPL financial instruments are 
recognized in earnings.  Gains and losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in OCI and are transferred to 
earnings when the instrument is settled. The other categories of financial instruments are recognized at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate method. The Company does not currently utilize derivative financial instruments. Derivatives embedded 
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in other instruments or host contracts are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately when their economic 
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host contract. Embedded derivatives are recorded on the balance sheet at 
fair value with any changes in the fair value recognized in earnings. 

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with 
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

The Company’s financial instruments are listed as follows, according to their classification: 

i) Cash and bank indebtedness are classified as FVTPL and are measured at fair value. Gains and losses as a result of 
subsequent revaluations are recorded in earnings. 

ii) Accounts and notes receivable are classified as loans and receivables and are initially measured at fair value with 
subsequent revaluations recognized at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. 

iii) Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and long-term debt are classified as other liabilities and are initially measured at 
fair value with subsequent revaluations recognized at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. 

The Company’s U.S. dollar denominated debt has been designated as a hedge of the net investment in its U.S. operations. At 
the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether the hedge is highly effective in offsetting 
foreign exchange fluctuations of its net investment. The effective portion of the change in fair value of the hedging instrument 
is recorded in OCI; any ineffectiveness is recorded immediately in earnings. Amounts included in foreign currency translation 
reserve will be recognized in earnings when there is a reduction of the hedged net investment.  

Financial assets, other than those classified as FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting 
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that the estimated future cash flows of 
the investment have been affected.  

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between the 
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial 
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account; 
in either case the impairment loss is recognized in earnings. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written 
off against the allowance account. When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or 
losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period. 

With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss 
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously 
recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the 
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized-cost would have been had the impairment not been 
recognized. In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, impairment losses previously recognized in profit or loss are not 
reversed through profit or loss; instead, any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognized in OCI. 
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Note 4. Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs 
On January 1, 2014, the Company adopted several new IFRS interpretations and amendments, in accordance with the 
transitional provisions of each standard, as follows:  

IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets" was amended to reduce the circumstances in which the recoverable amount of CGUs is 
required to be disclosed and clarify the disclosures required when an impairment loss has been recognized or reversed in the 
period. The adoption of these amendments affects the Company's disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial 
statements in periods when an impairment loss or impairment reversal is recognized. 

IAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement" was amended to clarify that there would be no requirement to 
discontinue hedge accounting if a hedging derivative was updated, provided certain criteria are met. The adoption of these 
amendments did not have any effect on the Company’s financial results, financial position, or financial statement presentation 
and disclosures. 

IFRIC 21 "Levies" was developed by the IFRS Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") and is applicable to all levies imposed by 
governments under legislation, other than outflows that are within the scope of other standards (e.g., IAS 12 "Income Taxes") 
and fines or other penalties for breaches of legislation. The interpretation clarifies that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy 
when the activity that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. It also clarifies that a levy liability is 
accrued progressively only if the activity that triggers payment occurs over a period of time, in accordance with the relevant 
legislation. Lastly, the interpretation clarifies that a liability should not be recognized before the specified minimum threshold 
to trigger that levy is reached. The adoption of this interpretation did not have any effect on the Company’s financial results, 
financial position, or financial statement presentation and disclosures. 

Note 5. Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective 
The following are IFRS changes that have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, which may affect the 
Company, but are not yet effective: 

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, was first issued in November 2009 to replace current IAS 39, Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 replaces the current multiple classification and measurement models for financial assets 
and financial liabilities with a single model that has only two classification categories: amortized cost and fair value. Hedge 
accounting remains optional under IFRS 9, but the new model is intended to better reflect risk management activities in the 
financial statements and provide more opportunities to apply hedge accounting. In July 2014, the IASB deferred the mandatory 
effective date of IFRS 9 to January 1, 2018. IFRS 9 is still available for early adoption. The Company is continuing to assess 
the effect of IFRS 9 on its financial results and financial position. 

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, was issued to supersede IAS 18, Revenue, IAS 11, Construction Contracts 
and related  interpretations. IFRS 15 is intended to provide a single principles based model to apply to all contracts with 
customers where there are two approaches to recognizing revenue: over time or at a point in time. IFRS 15 also includes new 
disclosure requirements. The standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with 
earlier adoption permitted. The Company has begun to assess the potential impact that the new standard will have on its 
financial results and financial position. 
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Note 6. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires that certain estimates and judgements be made with respect to 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities.  These estimates are based on 
historical experience and management’s judgement. Anticipating future events involves uncertainty and consequently the 
estimates used by management in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements may change as future events unfold, 
additional experience is acquired or the Company’s operating environment changes.  Management considers the following to 
be the most significant of these estimates and judgements: 

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 
Depreciation of property, equipment and intangible assets is carried out on the basis of the estimated useful lives of the related 
assets.  Equipment under construction is not depreciated until it is available for use.  Included in property and equipment is 
equipment acquired under finance leases.  All equipment is depreciated based on the straight-line method, utilizing either 
years, operating days in the case of drilling equipment, or operating hours in the case of well servicing equipment.  All 
equipment is depreciated net of expected residual values of 0% - 20%. 

Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated useful lives and the appropriate depreciation methodology of property and 
equipment requires judgement and is based on currently available information, including periodic depreciation studies 
conducted by the Company.  Additionally, the Company canvasses its competitors to assess whether the methodologies and 
rates utilized are consistent with the remainder of the sector in which Savanna operates.  Changes in circumstances, such as 
technological advances, changes to the Company’s business strategy, changes in the Company’s capital strategy or changes in 
regulations may result in the actual useful lives differing from the Company’s estimates.   

A change in the remaining useful life of a group of assets, or their expected residual value, will affect the depreciation rate used 
to amortize the group of assets and thus affect depreciation expense as reported in the Company’s results of operations. These 
changes are reported prospectively when they occur.   

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 
The values of property, equipment, intangible assets and goodwill are reviewed annually, or more frequently, if events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the assets might be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset 
belongs. The determination of CGUs and the allocation of assets thereto are based on management’s judgement. In 2013, 
management reviewed the allocation of assets deployed in Australia and disaggregated the Australian operations into separate 
CGUs. The Company’s CGUs are as follows: North American well servicing; North American rentals; Australian well 
servicing; Australian rentals; North American shallow drilling; Australian shallow drilling; and North American long-reach 
drilling. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Assessing fair value less costs to sell requires 
management judgement with respect to assumptions used in the pricing of assets. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. In 
developing the estimated future cash flows, assumptions must also be made on future well servicing and drilling activity, 
margins and market conditions over the long-term life of the assets or CGUs. Such estimates are subject to significant 
uncertainty and judgement. As a result, any impairment losses are a result of management’s best estimates of fair value less 
costs to sell, expected revenues, expenses, cash flows, and discount rates at a specific point in time. These estimates are subject 
to measurement uncertainty as they are dependent on factors outside of management’s control.  
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In addition, by their nature impairment tests involve a significant degree of judgement as expectations concerning future cash 
flows and the selection of appropriate market inputs are subject to considerable risks and uncertainties.  

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 
Compensation expense associated with stock options and PSEs granted is based on various assumptions, using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model, to produce an estimate of fair value.  This estimate may vary due to changes in the variables 
used in the model including interest rates, expected life, expected volatility, expected forfeitures and share prices. Estimating 
expected life and forfeitures requires judgement. 

Compensation expense is also provided for DSUs, RSUs and PSUs. The number of DSUs, RSUs and PSUs expected to vest 
are measured at fair value at each reporting period on a mark-to-market basis; any changes in their fair values are recognized 
immediately in earnings. An estimate of the number of DSUs and RSUs expected to vest based on certain vesting criteria, and 
an estimate of the number of PSUs expected to vest based on certain performance and other vesting criteria is made each 
reporting period. Estimating vesting criteria and forfeitures involves judgement. The number of DSUs, RSUs and PSUs that 
actually vest could differ from those estimates and any changes are recognized prospectively when they occur as an increase or 
decrease in compensation expense. 

PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE 
The allowance for doubtful accounts and past due receivables are reviewed by management on a monthly basis. Accounts 
receivable are considered for impairment on a case-by-case basis when they are past due or when objective evidence is 
received that a customer will default. Management makes these assessments after taking into consideration the customer’s 
payment history, their credit worthiness and the current economic environment in which the customer operates to assess 
impairment. The Company’s historical bad debt expenses have not been significant and are usually limited to specific customer 
circumstances. However, given the cyclical nature of the oil and gas industry along with the current economic operating 
environment, a customer’s ability to fulfill its payment obligations can change suddenly and without notice. 

INCOME TAXES 
The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes.  Under this method, deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities are recorded based on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and its tax base. 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to 
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. The Company’s operations are complex and are located in multiple income tax 
jurisdictions. The computation of the provision for income taxes involves a significant degree of judgement regarding tax 
interpretations, regulations and legislation that are continually changing.  There are matters that have not yet been confirmed 
by taxation authorities; however, management believes the provision for income taxes is adequate. Any changes in the 
estimated amounts are recognized prospectively in the statement of net earnings. 

CONTROL OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS PARTIALLY OWNED BY THE COMPANY 
As outlined in Note 1, Savanna conducts a portion of its operations through limited partnerships in which each of Savanna and 
an Aboriginal partner hold approximately half of a partnership interest. IFRS 10 outlines specific criteria to use in determining 
whether control of a subsidiary exists. There are many aspects of the relationships between the Company and the limited 
partnerships which it partially owns that are considered in determining whether Savanna controls these limited partnerships for 
financial reporting purposes, including: the purpose and design of the partnerships; the activities of the partnerships that 
generate returns; the ability to direct those activities; and exposure to variable returns as a result thereof. These considerations 
and determinations are complex and are based on management’s judgement.  
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
The Company records its financial instruments at fair value on inception with changes in fair value being recorded when 
required by the Company’s classification of such instruments. The calculation of fair value of the Company’s financial 
instruments requires judgement around expected outcomes and is based on many variables including but not limited to credit 
spreads and interest rate spreads. These calculations are complex and require significant judgement around the selection of 
market inputs that are subject to factors outside of management’s control.  

 

Note 7. Segmented Information 

The Company’s reportable operating segments, as determined by management, are strategic operating units that offer different 
products and services. The accounting policies of each reportable segment are the same as those described in Note 3. The 
Company has three reportable segments as follows:  

CORPORATE 
The corporate segment provides management and administrative services to all of the Company’s subsidiaries and their 
respective operations.  

SERVICES 

The services segment provides well servicing services and rental equipment to the oil and gas industry.  

DRILLING 
The drilling segment provides contract drilling services to the oil and gas industry. 

There are varying levels of integration between the Services and Drilling reportable segments. This integration includes the 
provision of rental equipment for use in drilling operations at market rates. These transactions are eliminated on consolidation 
as an inter-segment elimination. 

The following footnotes apply to all of the tables presented in Note 7: 

(i)  General and administrative expenses differ from the amounts reported in the consolidated statements of net earnings as they exclude the attributable amounts of 

share-based compensation and depreciation and amortization (Notes 10 and 11). This presentation is consistent with how management reviews the information 

internally. 

(ii)  Capital assets include property, equipment and intangible assets. 

(iii) Capital expenditures include: the purchase of property, equipment and intangible assets, non-cash capital asset additions and property, equipment and intangible 

assets acquired through business acquisitions. 
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  Inter-segment  2014 

For the year ended December 31, 2014 Corporate Services Drilling Eliminations Total

  $ $ $ $ $

REVENUE      

 Oilfield services  -  220,509  573,186   (2,078)  791,617 

 Other  -  19  254   -  273 

   -  220,528  573,440   (2,078)  791,890 

OPERATING EXPENSES  -  169,936  408,855   (2,078)  576,713 

REVENUE LESS OPERATING EXPENSES  -  50,592  164,585   -  215,177 

General and administrative expenses(i)  48,166  3,858  5,268   -  57,292 

Share-based compensation (Note 10)  (1,368)  334  250   -  (784)

Depreciation and amortization (Note 11)  5,190  25,735  75,322   -  106,247 

Impairment losses (Note 20)  -  110,741  283,138   -  393,879 

Finance expenses (Note 12)  12,636  146  2,135   -  14,917 

Other income (Note 13)  (1,075)  (61)  (1,293)  -  (2,429)

EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES  (63,549)  (90,161)  (200,235)  -  (353,945)

Capital assets(ii)  43,059  273,324  630,195   -  946,578 

Capital expenditures(iii)  15,129  78,065  154,645   -  247,839 

Total assets  126,631  304,836  752,458   -  1,183,925 

Total liabilities  (374,132)  (20,441)  (126,418)  -  (520,991)

  

  Inter-segment  2013 

For the year ended December 31, 2013 Corporate Services Drilling Eliminations Total

  $ $ $ $ $

REVENUE      

 Oilfield services  -  196,931  502,183   (2,867)  696,247 

 Other  -  29  333   -  362 

   -  196,960  502,516   (2,867)  696,609 

OPERATING EXPENSES  -  149,312  348,504   (2,867)  494,949 

REVENUE LESS OPERATING EXPENSES  -  47,648  154,012   -  201,660 

General and administrative expenses(i)  42,215  4,022  4,527   -  50,764 

Share-based compensation (Note 10)  5,981  518  545   -  7,044 

Depreciation and amortization (Note 11)  5,002  23,111  58,545   -  86,658 

Finance expenses (Note 12)  12,603  202  2,124   -  14,929 

Other (income) expenses (Note 13)  158  (1,156)  (835)  -  (1,833)

EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES  (65,959)  20,951  89,106   -  44,098 

Goodwill  -  9,619  -   -  9,619 

Capital assets(ii)  42,293  325,457  818,502   -  1,186,252 

Capital expenditures(iii)  21,475  40,903  62,492   -  124,870 

Total assets  90,848  363,275  937,479   -  1,391,602 

Total liabilities  (295,843)  (50,161)  (124,671)  -  (470,675)
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The Company operates in three reportable geographical segments. The following tables present revenue from external 
customers based on project location and non-current assets by physical location: 

  2014 

For the year ended December 31, 2014 Canada U.S. Australia Total

 $ $ $ $

Revenue  449,055  204,609   138,226  791,890 

Capital assets(ii)  633,997  176,250   136,331  946,578 

 
  2013 

For the year ended December 31, 2013 Canada U.S. Australia Total

 $ $ $ $

Revenue  409,188  176,510   110,911  696,609 

Goodwill  9,619  -   -  9,619 

Capital assets(ii)  837,672  246,516   102,064  1,186,252 

 

In the Services and Drilling reportable segments, for the year ended December 31,  2014, Savanna’s largest customer 
accounted for 15% (2013 - 11%) of revenue.  
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Note 8. Non-controlling Interests 

As outlined in Note 1, Savanna conducts a portion of its operations in Canada through limited partnerships in which each of 
Savanna and an Aboriginal partner hold approximately half of the partnership interest. Non-controlling interests represent the 
portions of these partnerships owned by Savanna’s Aboriginal partners and their share of the net earnings included in the 
consolidated results of the Company. The following outlines Savanna’s Aboriginal partners’ share of the revenue, expenses, 
assets, liabilities, and cash flows included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, and their share of cash 
contributions to, and distributions from the limited partnerships. None of the limited partnerships are individually material; as a 
result, the following financial information has been aggregated by reportable operating segment.  

 
  2014   2013

For the years ended December 31 Services Drilling Total Services Drilling Total

 $ $ $ $ $ $

REVENUE  5,898  19,276  25,174  4,269   13,565  17,834 

OPERATING EXPENSES(i)  4,900  11,767  16,667  3,228   8,715  11,943 

REVENUE LESS OPERATING EXPENSES  998  7,509  8,507  1,041   4,850  5,891 

Depreciation and amortization  811  2,888  3,699  389   1,733  2,122 

Impairment losses  1,658  5,614  7,272  -   -   -  

General and administrative expenses(i,ii)  256  976  1,232  194   837  1,031 

Finance expenses  142  217  359  97   107  204 

Other (income) expenses  -   36  36  (1)  (5)  (6)

Lease fees from Savanna(iii)  -   (1,374)  (1,374)  -   (1,153)  (1,153)

NET EARNINGS  (1,869)  (848)  (2,717)  362   3,331  3,693 

Current assets  1,154  4,767  5,921  1,570   6,352  7,922 

Capital assets(iv)  10,177  19,122  29,299  9,714   25,609  35,323 

Current liabilities  (347)  (433)  (780)  (44)  (546)  (590)

Current amounts owing from (to) Savanna(iii)  (3,284)  574  (2,710)  (834)  (2,070)  (2,904)

Notes payable to Savanna(iii)  (745)  -   (745)  (3,095)  (4,120)  (7,215)

Long-term debt (Note 25(d))  (2,211)  (3,634)  (5,845)  (1,532)  (1,702)  (3,234)

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  4,744  20,396  25,140  5,779   23,523  29,302 

Cash flows (used in) from operating activities(i)  855  6,687  7,542  1,231   5,860  7,091 

Cash flows used in investing activities(i)  (1,606)  (3,324)  (4,930)  (2,080)  (7,072)  (9,152)

Cash flows (used in) from financing activities(i,v)  (1,638)  (1,610)  (3,248)  965   3,805  4,770 

Partnership contributions  1,500  1,500  3,000  500   1,500  2,000 

Partnership distributions  (250)  (4,195)  (4,445)  (200)  (3,600)  (3,800)

 
(i) These amounts include inter-company transactions that eliminate on consolidation. 

(ii) General and administrative expenses for the limited partnerships partially owned by the Company do not include share-based compensation or depreciation and 

amortization as these are corporate costs that do not affect the partnerships. 

(iii) These are inter-company transactions and balances that fully eliminate on consolidation 

(iv) Capital assets include property, equipment and intangible assets. 

(v) Cash flows from financing activities exclude contributions to and distributions from the limited partnerships as these are disclosed separately. 
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Note 9. Personnel Expenses 

Total personnel related costs, excluding share-based compensation expense (Note 10), are as follows:  

 
For the years ended December 31 2014 2013

$ $

Wages, salaries and other short-term employee benefits  380,258   335,512 
Included in: 

Cost of services  348,148  307,155

General and administrative expenses  32,110   28,357 

  380,258   335,512 

 

Note 10. Share-based Compensation Expense 

The breakdown of share-based compensation expense is as follows:  

 
  

For the years ending December 31    2014   2013 

  $ $

Share-based compensation expense relating to:   

  Deferred share units    (2,972)  1,903 

  Performance share units    (138)  1,545 

  Restricted share units    519   538 

  Phantom share entitlements    (117)  (33)

  Stock options    1,924   3,091 

    (784)  7,044 

Included in:   

  Cost of services   584   1,062 

  General and administrative expenses   (1,368)  5,982 

     (784)  7,044 
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Note 11. Depreciation and Amortization 
The breakdown of depreciation and amortization expense is as follows: 

  

For the years ended December 31    2014   2013  

  $ $

Depreciation of property and equipment (Note 20)   105,939   86,128 

Amortization of intangible assets (Note 21)   308   530 

    106,247   86,658 

Included in:   

  Cost of services   103,946   84,375 

  General and administrative expenses   2,301   2,283 

     106,247   86,658 

 

Note 12. Finance Expenses 

The breakdown of finance expenses is as follows: 

 
For the years ended December 31 2014 2013

$ $

Interest on long-term debt 
 13,849   14,163 

Amortization of debt issue costs 
 1,068   766 

  14,917   14,929 

 

Note 13. Other Income 

The breakdown of other income is as follows: 

For the years ended December 31 2014 2013

$ $

Loss (Gain) on disposal of assets  951   (1,713)

Foreign exchange gain  (3,334)  (245)

Other  (46)  125 

  (2,429)  (1,833)
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Note 14. Income Taxes 

A) INCOME TAX EXPENSE 
The provision for income taxes differs from the result which would be obtained by applying the combined Canadian federal 
and provincial income tax rate of 25% (2013 – 25%) to earnings before income taxes. This difference results from the 
following: 

For the years ended December 31 2014 2013
 $ $

Earnings (loss) before income taxes  (353,945)  44,098 
 

Computed income tax expense at the statutory rate  (88,486)  11,025 
 

Increase (decrease) resulting from 

Earnings attributable to non-controlling interests not taxable within the group  679   (924)

Non-deductible expenses  3,274   1,217 

Permanent differences relating to dispositions of property and equipment   (437)  (117)

Income tax rate differential on foreign operations  (16,290)  441 

Changes in deferred income tax rates  56   (377)

Income taxes related to prior years  (516)  (963)

Other  (200)  (140)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE   (101,920)  10,162 

Represented by: 

Current income tax expense  6,319   545 

Deferred income tax expense  (108,239)  9,617 

INCOME TAX EXPENSE   (101,920)  10,162 

 
 

B) INCOME TAX EXPENSE NOT PART OF THE DETERMINATION OF NET EARNINGS 
Unrealized and realized gains and losses on the Company’s net investment hedge and certain other amounts considered part of 
the Company’s net investment in its foreign operations result in tax expenses that are included in OCI. In 2014, a tax expense 
of $Nil (2013 – $204) related to realized gains on certain amounts of the Company’s net investment in its foreign operations is 
included in income taxes payable. A tax recovery of $799 (2013 – $520) related to unrealized gains and losses on the 
Company’s net investment hedge is included in deferred income tax liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. Deferred tax 
expense of $259 (2013 – deferred tax recovery of $312) is also included in the foreign currency translation adjustment in OCI. 
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C) CURRENT INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
The components of the Company’s current income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:  

For the years ended December 31 2014 2013

$ $

Current income tax assets 

Income taxes receivable - Canada  -   2,445 

Income taxes receivable - U.S.  1,703   - 

  1,703   2,445 

Current income tax liabilities 

Income taxes payable - Canada  (4,921)  - 

Income taxes payable - U.S.  -   (94)

Income taxes payable - Mexico  (143)  - 

  (5,064)  (94)

  

Net current income tax(liabilities) assets  (3,361)  2,351 

 
 
D) DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
The components of the Company’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities are a result of the origination and reversal of 
temporary differences and are comprised of the following: 

For the years ended December 31 2014 2013

$ $

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) 

Unused non-capital losses  75,239   63,933 

Share issue and deferred financing costs  (62)  (64)

Share-based awards   977   1,992 

Deferred income taxes on income from limited partnerships  (2,068)  (2,988)

Property, equipment and intangible assets  (85,773)  (184,242)

Unrealized foreign exchange gains   (1,951)  (2,453)

Net deferred income tax liabilities  (13,638)  (123,822)

 
At December 31, the Company has non-capital losses available for carry forward totaling $208,529 (2013 - $180,140), of 
which $10,505 (2013  - $15,527) relates to Australian entities, $148,405 (2013 - $121,709) relates to U.S. entities, $Nil (2013 - 
$1,273) relates to Mexican entities, and $49,619 (2013 - $41,631) relates to Canadian entities. The unused tax losses, which 
begin to expire in 2026, may be applied to reduce future taxable income and future income taxes payable.  
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For the years ended December 31 2014 2013

$ $

Deferred income tax assets by jurisdiction: 

Australia  9,016   3,461 

U.S.  41,558   - 

Mexico  -   357 

  50,574   3,818 
 

Deferred income tax liabilities by jurisdiction: 

Canada  (64,212)  (119,739)

U.S.  -   (7,901)

  (64,212)  (127,640)

Net deferred income tax liabilities  (13,638)  (123,822)

 

The movements in the Company’s temporary differences are as follows: 

 Unused 
non-capital 

losses

Share issue 
and deferred 

financing 
costs

Share 
based 

awards
Partnership 

deferrals

Property, 
equipment 

and 
intangible 

assets

Unrealized 
foreign 

exchange 
gains

Net deferred 
income tax 

liabilitiesFor the year ended December 31, 2014 
 $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Balance, beginning of year 
 63,933  (64)  1,992  (2,988)  (184,242)  (2,453)  (123,822)

Recognized in net earnings 
 7,594  2  (1,015)  920  100,738   -   108,239 

Recognized in OCI 
 -   -   -   -   -   540  540 

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 
 3,712  -   -   -   (2,269)  (38)  1,405 

Balance, end of year 
 75,239  (62)  977  (2,068)  (85,773)  (1,951)  (13,638)

        

For the year ended December 31, 2013 
       

Balance, beginning of year 
 61,011  414  1,251  (4,310)  (168,468)  (3,426)  (113,528)

Recognized in net earnings 
 396  (478)  741  1,322  (11,598)  -   (9,617)

Recognized in OCI 
 -   -   -   -   -   832  832 

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 
 2,526  -   -   -   (4,176)  141  (1,509)

Balance, end of year 
 63,933  (64)  1,992  (2,988)  (184,242)  (2,453)  (123,822)
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Note 15. Accounts Receivable 

At December 31, 2014 2013
 $ $

Trade accounts receivable (Note 31(c))  130,165   131,563 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 31(c))  (580)  (630)

Net trade accounts receivable  129,585   130,933 

Accrued accounts receivable  17,699   20,593 

Goods and services taxes receivable  1,831   2,285 

Other  301   51 

  149,416   153,862 

 

Note 16. Inventory 

The Company’s inventory includes parts and operating supplies; the changes during the years are as follows: 

For the year ended December 31 2014 2013

 $ $

 

Balance, beginning of year 
 3,985   3,271 

Purchased 
 14,127   4,219 

Expensed in operating expenses 
 (11,699)  (3,499)

Transferred from property and equipment (Note 20) 
 173   279 

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 
 (116)  (285)

Balance, end of year  6,470   3,985 

 
No inventories were specifically pledged as security for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013; however all of the 
inventories were covered under the general security agreement of the Company’s term revolving credit facility (Note 26(a)).  

 

Note 17. Prepaid Expenses and Deposits 

The breakdown of the Company’s prepaid expenses and deposits is as follows: 

For the year ended December 31 2014 2013
 $ $

 

Deposits 
 260   250 

Prepaid rent 
 103   177 

Prepaid insurance 
 297   1,476 

Prepaid property taxes 
 154   134 

Prepaid licensing and permits 
 642   1,019 

Prepaid interest 
 219   - 

Other 
 710   493 

  2,385   3,549 
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Prepaid rent is recorded as rent expense in the period to which the pre-payments relate and is included in operating expenses 
and general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of net earnings at that time. Prepaid insurance and 
property taxes are amortized evenly over the periods to which the amounts relate and are included in operating expenses and 
general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of net earnings. Prepaid licensing and permits are expensed 
in the period to which the pre-payments relate and are included in operating expenses in the consolidated statements of net 
earnings.  

 

Note 18. Assets Held For Sale 

Assets held for sale totaling $16,039 (2013 - $Nil) as at December 31, 2014 are comprised of certain properties consisting of 
land and the buildings thereon. Of the total assets reclassified,  $2,360 is related to the services segment, $3,029 is related to 
the drilling segment and $10,650 is related to the corporate segment. The Company has developed plans and in some cases 
entered into agreements to dispose of these properties within the next year. The assets related to these agreements have been 
reclassified from property and equipment to current assets held for sale (Note 20) and are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. No impairment loss was recognized as a result of reclassifying the properties. 
Subsequent to the end of the year, the Company received proceeds of $11,500 on the sale of certain of these properties. The 
remaining land and buildings continue to be actively marketed. 

 

Note 19. Notes Receivable 

For the year ended December 31 Interest Rate 2014 2013
 % $ $

 
Note receivable  7.0  -   2,642 

Note receivable  7.0  4,125   4,249 

Note receivable  5.5  329   409 

  4,454   7,300 

 
The notes receivable above arose from the sale of interests in drilling and well servicing rigs and related equipment to partners 
of the limited partnerships partially owned by the Company, and have no set repayment terms.  All of the notes must be paid in 
full before the partnerships make any cash distribution to the partners. The notes receivable are secured by the related 
equipment, the fair values of which exceed the amount of the notes. In 2014, $275 (2013 - $359) in interest was accrued on the 
notes receivable, and $1,855 (2013 - $1,175) in principal repayments and $1,267 (2013 - $675) in interest was received by 
Savanna.  
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Note 20. Property and Equipment 

 Furniture

 Field and Office  2014 

 Land Buildings Equipment Equipment Total

For the year ended December 31, 2014 $ $ $ $ $

COST      

Balance, beginning of year  27,413  30,608  1,499,022   15,022  1,572,065 

Additions  1,148  10,246  235,774   673  247,841 

Disposals  -  -  (31,422)  -  (31,422)

Derecognition of assets  -  -  (82,966)  -  (82,966)

Transferred to inventory(Note 16)  -  -  (173)  -  (173)

Reclassified to assets held for sale(Note 18)  (4,951)  (11,088)  -   -  (16,039)

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates  119  242  38,647   78  39,086 

Balance, end of year  23,729  30,008  1,658,882   15,773  1,728,392 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION      

Balance, beginning of year  -  8,598  369,312   8,901  386,811 

Depreciation expense (Note 11)  -  1,244  102,394   2,301  105,939 

Derecognition of assets  -  -  (31,581)  -  (31,581)

Impairment losses  -  800  331,386   -  332,186 

Disposals  -  -  (28,935)  -  (28,935)

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates  -  57  17,302   35  17,394 

Balance, end of year  -  10,699  759,878   11,237  781,814 

NET BOOK VALUE  23,729  19,309  899,004   4,536  946,578 

 Furniture

 Field and Office  2013

 Land Buildings Equipment Equipment Total

For the year ended December 31, 2013 $ $ $ $ $

COST      

Balance, beginning of year  10,174  29,425  1,394,952   12,616  1,447,167 

Additions  17,154  1,035  104,274   2,407  124,870 

Disposals  -  -  (12,211)  -  (12,211)

Transferred to inventory (Note 16)  -  -  (279)  -  (279)

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates  85  148  12,288   (3)  12,518 

Balance, end of year  27,413  30,608  1,499,024   15,020  1,572,065 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION      

Balance, beginning of year  -  7,075  289,446   6,620  303,141 

Depreciation expense (Note 11)  -  1,495  82,350   2,283  86,128 

Disposals  -  -  (8,335)  -  (8,335)

Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates  -  28  5,851   (2)  5,877 

Balance, end of year  -  8,598  369,312   8,901  386,811 

NET BOOK VALUE  27,413  22,010  1,129,712   6,119  1,185,254 
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Included in the cost of field equipment was $75,149 (2013 - $14,346) of equipment under construction or intended for future 
construction, which was unavailable for use. In 2014, $1,829 (2013 - $Nil) of borrowing costs  were capitalized on qualifying 
projects. Included in field equipment was equipment under finance leases with a cost of $3,819 (2013 - $2,883) and 
accumulated depreciation of $1,552 (2013 - $1,147). Included in additions were $937 (2013 - $Nil) of assets acquired by way 
of finance lease; as such, these are excluded from the additions reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows.  

In 2014, the Company sold redundant assets for total proceeds of $1,536 (2013 - $5,589), which resulted in a loss of $951 
(2013 - gain of $1,713) (Note 13). 

Given the significant degree of uncertainty regarding oil and natural gas activity and pricing for the remainder of 2015 and into 
2016, and the impact thereof on Savanna, the Company determined to retire and derecognize a number of assets at December 
31, 2014. The assets derecognized included five drilling rigs, 18 service rigs, and ancillary equipment and their derecognition 
was based on the expectation of little or no future market for these specific assets in their current capacity. 

As a result of this uncertainty and the dramatic change in the Company’s operating environment, as well as the disconnect 
between the Company’s market capitalization and the book value of its assets, the Company also conducted impairment tests 
on specific assets, and on a CGU basis at both September 30 and December 31, 2014, on a higher of fair value less cost to sell, 
and value-in-use basis. These tests indicated that the carrying amounts of certain assets and CGUs exceeded their recoverable 
amount. The conditions for impairment were impacted by external factors including a sharp decrease in the price of oil in the 
months preceding and following the end of 2014 and continued uncertainty regarding natural gas pricing. Market dynamics 
related to specific asset classes and geographies were also considered. Certain assets, while economic and active at commodity 
pricing and activity levels that existed through most of 2014, may become challenged in a prolonged low commodity price and 
oilfield services activity environment. 

The impairment tests and asset retirements resulted in impairment losses of $393,879. Of the total impairment losses, $383,570 
was on property and equipment, $9,619 was on goodwill and $690 was on intangible assets. The goodwill and intangible asset 
impairment losses related to the North American well servicing CGU within the services segment. Of the property and 
equipment impairment losses, $100,432 related to the services segment and $283,138 related to the drilling segment. 
Impairment losses are a result of management’s best estimates at a specific point in time. These estimates are subject to 
measurement uncertainty as they are dependent on factors outside of management’s control. 

The assumptions used in the value-in-use impairment tests were based on the Company’s internal forecasts. The Company 
projected revenue, operating margins and cash flows for a period of four years and applied perpetual long-term growth rates of 
2.1% to 2.7% thereafter, depending on the CGU. In arriving at its forecasts, the Company considered the current low oil and 
natural gas pricing and activity environment, past experience, economic trends and industry trends. The Company assumed 
pre-tax discount rates of 12.2% to 15.9%, depending on the CGU, in order to calculate the present value of its projected cash 
flows. Determination of the discount rates included separate analyses of the cost of equity and debt, and considered a risk 
premium based on an assessment of risks related to the projected cash flows of the Company in general and each specific 
CGU.  

The most sensitive inputs to the model are the discount rate and the growth rate. The impairment test’s sensitivity to these 
inputs is as follows: All else being equal, a 0.5% increase in the discount rate would have led to additional impairment losses 
of $49,178. All else being equal, a 0.5% decrease in the growth rates would have led to additional impairment losses of 
$33,885. In each of these scenarios the impairment losses would have occurred on the same CGUs as in the impairments 
above. All else being equal, a 0.5% decrease in the discount rate would have led to a decrease in the impairment losses of 
$55,090. All else being equal, a 0.5% increase in the growth rates would have led to a decrease in the impairment losses of 
$37,846.  

At December 31, 2013, the Company tested its property, equipment, intangible assets and goodwill for impairment by 
estimating the recoverable amount of the Company’s CGUs, on a higher of fair value less cost to sell, and value in use basis. 
The results of the tests indicated that there was no impairment, on a CGU basis in 2013.   
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Note 21. Intangible Assets and Goodwill 
 Non-compete Customer 2014

For the year ended December 31, 2014 Patent Agreements Relationships Goodwill  Total

 $ $ $ $ $

COSTS 

Balance, beginning of year  101  383  1,810   9,619   11,913 

Impairment losses(Note 20)  -  (57)  (633)  (9,619)  (10,309)

Balance, end of year  101  326  1,177   -   1,604 

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION      

Balance, beginning of year  101  290  905   -   1,296 

Amortization expense (Note 11)  -  36  272   -   308 

Balance, end of year  101  326  1,177   -   1,604 

NET BOOK VALUE  -  -  -   -  1  - 

             
 Non-compete Customer 2013

For the year ended December 31, 2013 Patent Agreements Relationships Goodwill  Total

 $ $ $ $ $

COSTS 

Balance, beginning of year  101  383  1,810   9,619   11,913 

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION      

Balance, beginning of year  36  187  543   -   766 

Amortization expense (Note 11)  65  103  362   -   530 

Balance, end of year  101  290  905   -   1,296 

NET BOOK VALUE  -  93  905   9,619   10,617 

 

The carrying values of the Company’s intangible assets and goodwill were tested for impairment in 2014 and of the total 
impairment loss, $9,619 was on goodwill and $690 was on intangible assets (Note 20).  

The carrying values of the Company’s intangible assets and goodwill were tested for impairment in  2013, and the results of 
the tests indicated that there were no impairments (Note 20). 

  



  N O T E S  T O  T H E  C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  

S a v a n n a  E n e r g y  S e r v i c e s  C o r p .   2 0 1 4  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  76 

Note 22. Bank Indebtedness 

Dec. 31 Dec. 31

Effective 2014 2013

 Rate Authorized Outstanding Outstanding

% $ $ $

 

Canadian operating facility (Note 26(a))  3.3  20,000  -   10,236 

U.S. unsecured line of credit  -  5,801  -   - 

  20,000  -   10,236 

 

  

Note 23. Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
The breakdown of the Company’s accounts payable and accrued liabilities is as follows: 

For the year ended December 31, 2014 2013
 $ $

 

Trade payables 
 36,376   25,101 

Accrued liabilities 
 50,269   44,264 

Goods and services taxes 
 3,693   4,044 

Dividends payable 
 2,702   2,655 

DSU liabilities (Note 27(c)) 
 2,920   5,892 

PSU liabilities (Note 27(d)) 
 313   1,555 

RSU liabilities (Note 27(e)) 
 506   520 

PSE liabilities (Note 27(f)) 
 171   282 

Defined contribution plan liabilities 
 757   669 

Other payroll liabilities 
 3,125   2,650 

Other 
 383   253 

  101,215   87,885 
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Note 24. Commitments and Contingencies 

A) OPERATING COMMITMENTS 
Commitments relating to office and shop premises are recorded as rent expenses in the period to which the monthly amounts 
relate and are included in operating and general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of earnings at that 
time. 

Commitments relating to operating vehicle and equipment leases are recorded as equipment rental expenses in the period to 
which the amounts relate and are included in operating expenses and general and administrative expenses in the consolidated 
statement of earnings at that time. 

B) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 
Commitments relating to equipment purchases, asset construction, maintenance capital, and rig re-certifications are estimated 
based on committed capital budgets. Actual expenditures are recorded as capital asset additions at the time of payment and 
could differ from these estimates. 

Payments required in each of the next five years are as follows: 

   Operating  Capital 

  Commitments Commitments 

   $  $ 

 For the years ending December 31, 2015  4,248   57,269 

 2016  3,439   - 

 2017  2,987   - 

 2018  2,641   - 

 2019  2,436   - 

  15,751   57,269 

 

C) CONTINGENCIES 
The Company was subject to legal claims at December 31, 2014, and, although the outcome of these matters is not 
determinable at this time, the Company believes the claims will not have any material adverse effect on the Company’s 
financial position or operating results. 

 

Note 25. Deferred Revenue 

Due to the geographic distance between Canada and Australia, significant transportation, mobilization and rig-up costs are 
incurred to get rigs into the Australian market, some of which form part of the capital cost of the rigs. All of the Company’s 
recent long-term contracts in Australia provide for an amount to cover these costs, which is due on rig commissioning. The 
amounts received or receivable are recognized against operating costs as incurred or, in the case of capital costs, over the term 
of the related contract.    
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Note 26. Long-term Debt 

  Monthly Dec. 31 Dec. 31

  Principal Interest Effective Maturity  2014  2013 

  Payments Rate Rate Date Authorized Outstanding Outstanding

  $ % % $ $ $

Revolving credit facilities (a)  - (a)  3.4 May-18  230,000   161,207  63,816 

Senior unsecured notes (b)  -  7.0  7.0 May-18  175,000   175,000  175,000 

Finance lease obligations (c)  64 0-5.7  4.2 Mar-19  1,609   1,609  1,285 

Limited partnership facilities (d)  311 4.3-5.5  5.2 Jun-19  20,799   12,799  6,467 

Total long-term debt      427,408   350,615  246,568 

 Less: net unamortized debt issue costs       2,752  3,228 

 Less: current portion       4,499  2,353 

        343,364  240,987 

The effective rate represents the actual rates of interest paid or payable during the year. 

a) In May 2014, Savanna renewed its senior secured revolving credit facility, increased the amount available, and extended 
the term of the loan by one year. The entire facility, which is with a syndicate of banks, is for a committed four-year term 
and, based on the renewal, all drawn amounts are now due in May 2018, or four months earlier if the Company’s senior 
unsecured notes are not refinanced on terms acceptable to the lender. The Company can request to extend the term of the 
loan annually. On renewal, the total amount available was increased to $250,000 from the $200,000 available at December 
31, 2013. The renewed facility is comprised of a $220,000 Canadian syndicated facility, a $10,000 Australian facility, 
which together are outlined in the table above, and a $20,000 Canadian operating facility, which when drawn is included 
in bank indebtedness in the consolidated financial statements. Prior to renewal, the facility was comprised of a $170,000 
Canadian syndicated facility, a $10,000 Australian facility, and a $20,000 Canadian operating facility.  Of the total amount 
outstanding on the overall revolving credit facility at December 31, 2014, $81,207 Canadian dollar equivalent was 
denominated in U.S. dollars ($70,000 USD). At December 31, 2013, $63,816 Canadian dollar equivalent was 
denominated in U.S. dollars ($60,000 USD). Debt issue costs with respect to the facility are expensed over the term of the 
loan as finance expenses. 

Borrowings under the facility may be made by way of Canadian prime rate based advances, bankers’ acceptances, letters 
of credit, U.S. base rate, LIBOR advances or, in the case of the Australian facility, BBSY advances.  At December 31, 
2014, the facility bore interest at the banks’ Canadian prime rate or U.S. base rate plus 0.5% to 2.25%, bankers’ 
acceptance, letter of credit, LIBOR or BBSY advances plus a 1.75% to 3.5% stamping fee. All of these interest rate 
spreads are dependent on certain financial ratios of the Company. A commitment fee ranging from 0.39% to 0.79% per 
annum is paid quarterly on the unused portion of the facility depending on certain financial ratios of the Company. All of 
the above interest rates remain unchanged from December 31, 2013. 

The facility is secured by a general security agreement over all the present and future property of the Company and its 
subsidiaries. The Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants at December 31, 2014 (Note 28). The security 
and debt covenants on the facility at December 31, 2014 remain unchanged from December 31, 2013. 
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b) Savanna has outstanding, $175,000 aggregate principal amount of 7.0% senior unsecured notes, due May 25, 2018. These 
notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 7.0% per annum, which is payable semi-annually in May and November of each year, 
and rank equal in right of payment to all existing and future unsecured indebtedness. These notes contain certain 
restrictions that limit the Company’s ability to incur additional indebtedness, make restricted payments, and dispose of 
certain assets. Debt issue costs with respect to these notes are expensed over the term of the loan as finance expenses. 
Savanna has redemption options available throughout the term of the loan at varying redemption prices, all of which are in 
excess of the principal amount of the loan; however, the Company does not expect to repay any portion of the notes prior 
to May 25, 2018. 

c) Finance lease obligations relate to field equipment with five year lease terms. The Company has the option to purchase the 
equipment for a nominal amount at the conclusion of the lease agreements. The finance lease obligations are secured by 
the related equipment (Note 20). Minimum lease payments required over the next five years are as follows: 

 
   $ 

 For the years ending December 31, 2015  767 

 2016  353 

 2017  235 

 2018  202 

 2019  52 

  1,609 

 

d) The limited partnership facilities are in limited partnerships partially owned by the Company. In the first quarter of 2014, 
Savanna secured $17,000 in new financing in two separate limited partnerships partially owned by the Company. The 
financing consists of a $14,000 line of credit in the Company’s partnership with Fort McKay First Nation and a $3,000 
term loan in another partnership. The Company has not guaranteed any of the loans in the limited partnerships. Within the 
individual limited partnerships, the loans are secured by a general assignment of book debts and a general security 
agreement charging all present and after-acquired property of the partnerships. Principal repayments required over the 
next four years are as follows: 

  

   $ 

 For the years ending December 31, 2015  3,732 

 2016  3,875 

 2017  2,363 

 2018  1,858 

 2019  971 

  12,799 
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Note 27. Share Capital 

A) AUTHORIZED 
The Company has authorized an unlimited number of common shares, Class A common shares, and preferred shares. 

B) ISSUED 

For the year ended December 31  2014   2013 

 Shares $ Shares $

COMMON SHARES     

Balance, beginning of year  88,506  995,918   85,905   975,571 

Issued for cash on exercise of stock options  365  2,459   1,348   8,673 

Fair value of stock options exercised  -  833   -   3,042 

Issued through dividend reinvestment plan  1,211  8,068   1,253   8,632 

Balance, end of year  90,082  1,007,278   88,506   995,918 

At December 31, 2014, the Company had 8,626 (2013 – 7,181) common shares reserved for issue upon exercise of stock 
options and PSUs.  

In 2014, Savanna declared dividends totaling $32,172 or $0.36 per share. Of the dividends declared, $8,068 was reinvested in 
additional common shares through the Company’s dividend reinvestment plan. In 2013, Savanna declared dividends totaling 
$31,338 or $0.36 per share, of which, $8,632 was reinvested in additional common shares of the Company. At December 31, 
2014, the Company had 1,116 (2013 – 2,327) common shares reserved for issue under its dividend reinvestment plan.  

Subsequent to the end of the year, Savanna's management and board reassessed the level of the Company's dividend in the 
context of prevailing market conditions. In this regard, Savanna reduced the Company's dividend from $0.03 per share per 
month ($0.36 per share per year), and declared a $0.03 per share quarterly dividend to be paid to shareholders of record on 
March 31, 2015. The Company also suspended its dividend reinvestment plan with respect to dividends paid after January 15, 
2015. 

C) DEFERRED SHARE UNIT PLAN 
The Company has a deferred share unit plan for independent directors and officers of the Company. The DSUs are granted 
annually and represent rights to share value based on the number of DSUs issued. Under the terms of the plan, DSUs awarded 
to independent directors will vest immediately and those awarded to officers will vest equally over a three-year term on their 
anniversary date. Additional DSUs are awarded in lieu of dividends, when declared, based on the number of DSUs 
outstanding. Effective July 2010, DSUs are only granted to independent directors. 

 2014 2014 2013 2013

Outstanding Exercisable Outstanding Exercisable
    

Outstanding, beginning of year  693  693   556   541 

Granted/vested  171  171   137   152 
Settled in cash     

Outstanding, end of year  864  864   693   693 

The number of DSUs expected to vest are valued on a mark-to-market basis. The recognition and valuation of DSUs results in 
share-based compensation expense (Note 10) and a corresponding liability, which was included in accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities (Note 23). 
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D) PERFORMANCE SHARE UNIT PLAN 
The Company has a performance share unit plan for officers of the Company. The PSUs are granted annually and represent 
rights to share value based on the number of PSUs issued and achieving certain performance criteria as set out by the Board of 
Directors. Subject to achievement of performance criteria, under the terms of the plan, PSUs awarded will vest equally over a 
three-year term on their anniversary date and are recognized over their vesting period.  PSUs, which meet the performance and 
other vesting criteria, will be settled in cash or common shares of the Company upon exercise. Additional PSUs are awarded in 
lieu of dividends, when declared, based on the number of PSUs outstanding. 

 2014 2014 2013 2013

Outstanding Exercisable Outstanding Exercisable
    

Outstanding, beginning of year  376  -   298  - 

Granted/vested  197  138   227  149 

Cancelled  (46)  -   -  - 

Settled in cash  (138)  (138)  (149)  (149)
     

Outstanding, end of year  389  -   376  -  

The number of PSUs expected to vest are valued on a mark-to-market basis. The recognition and valuation of PSUs results in 
share-based compensation expense (Note 10) and a corresponding liability, which was included in accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities (Note 23). 

E) RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT PLAN 
The Company has a restricted share unit plan for the purpose of developing the interest of employees in the growth and 
development of the Company by providing them rights to share value based on the number of RSUs granted. In 2013, 
concurrent with the implementation of the RSU plan, the number of RSUs granted to employees offset all, or a portion of the 
number of stock options previously granted to employees. Under the terms of the plan, RSUs awarded will vest equally over a 
three-year term on their anniversary date and are recognized over their vesting period.  RSUs are settled in cash upon vesting. 
Additional RSUs are awarded in lieu of dividends, when declared, based on the number of RSUs outstanding. 

 2014 2014 2013 2013

Outstanding Exercisable Outstanding Exercisable
    

Outstanding, beginning of year  260  -   -  - 

Granted/vested  340  78   271  2 

Forfeited  (58)  -   (9)  - 

Settled in cash  (78)  (78)  (2)  (2)
     

Outstanding, end of year  464  -   260  -  

The number of RSUs expected to vest are valued on a mark-to-market basis. The recognition and valuation of RSUs results in 
share-based compensation expense (Note 10) and a corresponding liability, which was included in accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities (Note 23). 
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F) PHANTOM SHARE ENTITLEMENT PLAN 
The Company has a phantom share entitlement plan for the purpose of developing the interest of employees in its foreign 
subsidiaries in the growth and development of the Company by providing them rights to share value based on the number of 
PSEs granted. 

 2014 2013
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average

Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price Exercisable

Outstanding (per share) PSEs at Outstanding (per share) PSEs at

PSEs $ Dec. 31 PSEs $ Dec. 31

      
Outstanding, beginning of year  455 7.48  347  587 7.44  310 

Granted  36 6.84  -  18 7.53  - 

Exercised  -  -  -  (55) 6.62  (55)

Forfeited  (43) 7.26  -  (95) 7.72  - 

Outstanding, end of year 448 7.45 347 455 7.48 255

Compensation expense for PSEs is recognized using fair value, which is adjusted at the end of each reporting period, and is 
amortized over the vesting period. For PSEs granted in 2014, the Company used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with 
the following assumptions: risk-free interest rates of 1.0% to 1.3%, expected lives of two to five years, expected annual 
dividends of $0.36, estimated forfeiture rates of 9% and expected volatilities of 28% to 35%. For PSEs granted in 2013, the 
Company used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions: risk-free interest rates of 1.1% to 
1.8%, expected lives of three to five years, expected annual dividends of $0.36, estimated forfeiture rates of 8% to 10% and 
expected volatilities of 27% to 36%. The recognition and valuation of PSEs results in share-based compensation expense (Note 
10) and a corresponding liability, which was included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 23). 

G) STOCK OPTION PLAN 
 The Company has a stock option plan for the purpose of developing the interest of officers, employees and consultants of the 
Company and its subsidiaries in the growth and development of the Company by providing them with the opportunity, through 
stock options, to acquire an increased effective interest in the Company. 

 2014 2013
Weighted-

Average
Weighted-

Average
Exercise Price Exercise Price

Stock (per share) Stock (per share)

Options $ Options $

    
Outstanding, beginning of the year  5,084 7.41  6,080 7.20

Granted  1,511 6.84  1,011 7.47

Exercised  (365) 6.74  (1,348) 6.44

Expired  (1) 7.17  (10) 6.03

Forfeited  (419) 7.78  (649) 7.58

 

Outstanding, end of year  5,810  7.28   5,084  7.41 
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At December 31, 2014,  5,810  (2013 –  5,084 ) options were outstanding at exercise prices between $5.78 and $9.23 per share 
(2013 - $5.78 and $9.23 per share). The options expire from May 25, 2015 to November 13, 2019 and vest in equal amounts on 
their anniversary over three to five years. At December 31, 2014,  3,174  (2013 –  2,320 ) options were exercisable at a 
weighted-average exercise price of $7.49 per share (2013 - $7.31 per share). The following table summarizes these details: 

 2014 2013
 Number of Weighted-Average Number of Number of Weighted-Average Number of

Exercise Price Options Contractual Options Options Contractual Options

(per share) Outstanding Life (years) Exercisable Outstanding Life (years) Exercisable

$4.46 - $6.28  1,595  3.2  624  793  1.7  793 

$6.29 - $6.89  904  2.9  592  1,063  3.9  317 

$6.90 - $7.72  1,110  2.8  589  1,284  3.7  269 

$7.73 - $8.55  1,117  2.8  786  1,279  3.7  498 

$8.56 - $9.23  1,083  2.9  583  665  2.6  443 

 5,809  2.9  3,174  5,084  3.3  2,320 

Compensation expense for stock options is recognized using the fair value when the stock options are granted, and is amortized 
over the option’s vesting period for employees and the related service period for non-employees (Note 10). For options granted 
in 2014, the Company used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions: risk-free interest rates of 
1.1% to 1.5%, expected lives of three to five years, expected annual dividends of $0.36, estimated forfeiture rates of 9% to 
10% and expected volatilities of 27% to 36%. For options granted in 2013, the Company used the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model with the following assumptions: risk-free interest rates of 1.1% to 1.7%, expected lives of three to five years, 
expected annual dividends of $0.36, estimated forfeiture rates of 9% to 10% and expected volatilities of 35% to 51%. 

H) RECONCILIATION OF WEIGHTED-AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING 

 

For the years ended December 31  2014  2013 

Basic weighted-average shares outstanding    89,307  86,953 

Effect of dilutive securities: Stock options    -  377 

Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding    89,307  87,330 

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the effect of dilutive securities with respect to stock options was anti-dilutive, resulting 
in the same weighted average shares outstanding on both a basic and diluted basis. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the 
dilutive effect with respect to stock options is that 3,223 options are assumed exercised and 2,846 options are assumed 
purchased.  

  



  N O T E S  T O  T H E  C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  

S a v a n n a  E n e r g y  S e r v i c e s  C o r p .   2 0 1 4  A N N U A L  R E P O R T  84 

Note 28. Capital Management 

The capital structure of the Company consists of the following: 

For the years ended December 31 2014 2013
 $ $

 
Long-term debt (Note 26)  350,615   246,568 

Shareholders' equity  662,934   920,927 

Total capitalization  1,013,549   1,167,495 

Long-term debt to shareholders' equity ratio  0.53   0.27 

 

Savanna’s primary objective of managing capital, given the cyclical nature of the oil and gas services business, is to preserve 
the Company’s financial flexibility in order to benefit from potential opportunities as they arise and in turn to maximize returns 
for Savanna shareholders. This objective is achieved by: prudently managing the capital generated through internal growth; 
optimizing the use of lower cost capital; raising share capital or placing debt when required to fund growth initiatives; and a 
conservative approach to safeguarding the Company’s assets. The Company’s overall capital management strategy remains 
unchanged from 2013. 

The Company’s ability to access its revolving credit facility (Note 26(a)) is directly dependent, among other factors, on the 
following financial ratios: (i) total borrowings on this facility to twelve-month trailing EBITDAS (EBITDAS is defined as 
earnings before finance expenses, income taxes, depreciation, amortization and share-based compensation) of less than 3.0; (ii) 
total long-term debt (which includes revolving credit facilities, senior unsecured notes, finance lease obligations and excludes 
limited partnership facilities (Note 26)) to twelve-month trailing EBITDAS of less than 4.0; and (iii) twelve-month trailing 
EBITDAS to interest expense of greater than 3.0. The computation of these ratios excludes amounts from certain non-
guarantor subsidiaries and the limited partnerships partially owned by the Company. In addition, dividends paid are limited to 
60% of excess cash flows. The Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants as at December 31, 2014 and 2013. 
Other than its debt covenants and certain restrictions related to its senior unsecured notes, as described in Note 26(b), the 
Company has no externally-imposed capital requirements. 

Additionally, the ability to raise capital could be restricted in the face of a reduction in oilfield service demand. Although 
Savanna cannot anticipate all eventualities in this regard, the Company strives to maintain what it believes to be a conservative 
long-term debt to shareholders’ equity ratio. In certain circumstances the Company may need to increase this ratio in order to 
fund significant acquisitions or other significant expansions. 

The Company intends to maintain a flexible capital structure consistent with the objectives stated above and to respond to 
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust Savanna’s 
capital structure, the Company may purchase shares for cancellation pursuant to normal course issuer bids, issue new shares, 
adjust the amount of dividends paid to align the dividend policy with shareholder expectations, raise debt or refinance existing 
debt with different characteristics.  
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Note 29. Supplementary Cash Flow Information 

The net change in working capital items other than cash is as follows:  

 

Note 30. Related Party Transactions 

The Company’s related parties include its wholly-owned subsidiaries, partnerships partially owned by the Company, and key 
management, which consists of the directors and officers of the Company. Balances and transactions between the Company 
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries or limited partnerships partially owned by the Company are eliminated on consolidation and, 
therefore, are not disclosed. The following related party transactions occurred during 2014:  

a) Compensation expense for key management is included in general and administrative expenses and share-based 
compensation expenses, as applicable, and comprised the following: 

For the years ended December 31 2014 2013

$ $

 
Wages, salaries and other short-term employee benefits  3,524   3,460 

Share-based compensation  (1,880)  4,682 

Other  130   209 

  1,774   8,351 

 
b) Revenue in the amount of $6,455 (2013 – $6,869) was earned from customers that have common directors of the 

Company. 

The related party transactions above were in the normal course of operations and were measured at fair value, which are the 
amounts of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties and, which in the opinion of management, are 
considered similar to those negotiable with third parties. 

For the years ended December 31 2014 2013

$ $

Accounts receivable  3,647   (6,833)

Inventory  (2,605)  (621)

Prepaid expenses and deposits  1,123   (1,785)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  15,930   8,544 

  18,095   (695)
Represented by: 

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities  8,010   (3,838)

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities  10,085   3,143 

  18,095   (695)
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Note 31. Financial Instruments 

The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, notes receivable, bank indebtedness, accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities, and long-term debt. All of the Company’s financial instruments were classified as either 
FVTPL, loans and receivables or other financial liabilities. The fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as 
follows: 

i) The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, bank indebtedness, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
approximate their fair values due to the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial instruments. 

ii) The carrying amounts of the Company’s revolving credit facilities (Note 26(a)) approximate their fair values due to the 
variable interest rates applied to these facilities, which approximate market interest rates.  

iii) The fair value of the Company’s senior unsecured notes (Note 26(b)) is estimated based on level-one inputs, which are 
unadjusted, quoted market prices for these notes. The Company’s senior unsecured notes had a fair value of  $172,375  at 
December 31, 2014 (2013 - $176,313). 

iv) The fair values of the Company’s remaining long-term debt (Notes 26(c) and (d)) and notes receivable (Note 19) are 
estimated based on current market interest rates and are not materially different than their carrying amounts.  

The nature of these financial instruments and the Company’s operations expose the Company to financial risks. Financial risk 
management is the responsibility of the Company’s corporate finance function. The main objective of the Company’s risk 
management process is to properly identify financial risks and minimize the exposure to potential losses arising from those 
risks. The nature of the Company’s operations and the issuance of long-term debt expose the Company to risks of varying 
degrees of significance. The principal financial risks to which the Company is exposed are described in a) to d) below. The 
Company does not manage these risks through the use of derivative instruments.  

A) FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK 
The Company is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations as revenues, expenses and working capital derived from its foreign 
operations are denominated in U.S. dollars, Australian dollars and Mexican pesos. In addition, the Company's foreign 
subsidiaries are subject to translation gains and losses on consolidation. Realized foreign exchange gains and losses are 
included in net earnings while foreign exchange gains and losses arising on the translation of the assets, liabilities, revenues 
and expenses of the Company’s foreign operations are included in OCI. The Company’s Canadian dollar equivalent of working 
capital, excluding the current portion of long-term debt, denominated in foreign currencies was as follows: 

  

 

 2014 2013
 $ $

 
Working capital denominated in U.S. dollars  13,273   26,249 

Working capital denominated in Australian dollars  9,593   18,421 

Working capital denominated in Mexican Pesos  190   61 

  23,056   44,731 
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The Company also holds U.S. and Australian dollar denominated debt (Note 26(a)). The Company’s U.S. dollar debt is used to 
manage the exposure to foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the translation of its U.S. functional currency 
operations included in OCI.  

The Company’s sensitivity to foreign currency fluctuations is as follows: all else being equal, a hypothetical strengthening of 
5% of each of the U.S. dollar, Australian dollar and Mexican peso against the Canadian dollar would have increased 
(decreased) earnings before income taxes and OCI as follows: 

 
 U.S. Australian Mexican

2014
For the year ended December 31, 2014 Dollar Dollar Peso

Total
 $ $ $ $

Earnings before income taxes  (4,122)  (682)  58  (4,746)

OCI  8,615  215   739  9,569 

  4,493  (467)  797  4,823 

  
 U.S. Australian Mexican

2013
For the year ended December 31, 2013 Dollar Dollar Peso

Total
 $ $ $ $

Earnings before income taxes  383  81   24  488 

OCI  13,185  866   691  14,742 

  13,568  947   715  15,230 

For a hypothetical 5% weakening of each of the U.S. dollar, Australian dollar and Mexican peso against the Canadian dollar, 
there would be an equal and opposite effect on earnings before income taxes and OCI to that presented in the tables above.  

B) INTEREST RATE RISK 
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on a portion of its notes receivable and long-term debt and does not currently hold 
any financial instruments that mitigate this risk. The Company’s fixed-rate notes receivable and fixed-rate debt are subject to 
interest rate price risk, as the values will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates.  Floating-rate debt is subject to 
interest rate cash flow risk, as the required cash flows to service the debt will fluctuate with changes in market interest rates. 

All of the Company’s notes receivable at December 31, 2014 and 2013 had fixed-rates. Of the Company’s total debt at 
December 31, 2014, 54%  was fixed-rate debt (2013 – 71%) and 46% was floating-rate debt (2013 – 29%). The remainder of 
the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are not exposed to interest rate risk. For the year ended December 31, 2014, all 
else being equal, a 1% increase in interest rates on floating-rate debt would have decreased earnings before income taxes by 
$953 (2013 - $1,098). For a 1% decrease in interest rates on floating-rate debt, there would be an equal and opposite effect on 
earnings before income taxes. 
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C) CREDIT RISK 
Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to customers and partners in 
the form of outstanding accounts and notes receivable, and suppliers in the form of deposits placed on long-lead items. The 
maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets.  

As stated above, the carrying amount of accounts receivable reflects management’s assessment of the credit risk associated 
with its customers. The Company generally grants unsecured credit to its customers; however, the Company applies rigorous 
evaluation procedures to all new customers and analyzes and reviews the financial health of its current customers on an 
ongoing basis. The allowance for doubtful accounts and past due receivables are reviewed by management on a monthly basis. 
Accounts receivable are considered for impairment on a case-by-case basis when they are past due or when objective evidence 
is received that a customer will default. The Company takes into consideration the customer’s payment history, their credit 
worthiness and the current economic environment in which the customer operates to assess impairment. The Company 
accounts for a specific bad debt provision when management considers that the expected recovery is less than the actual 
amount receivable. When a receivable balance is considered uncollectible it is written off against the allowance for doubtful 
accounts. Subsequent recovery of amounts previously written off is included in net earnings.  

Based on the nature of its operations, Savanna will always have a concentration of credit risk as a substantial portion of the 
Company’s accounts receivable are with customers in the oil and gas industry and are subject to normal industry credit risks. 
For the year ended December 31, 2014, ten customers comprised 43% of revenue (2013 - 40%) and one customer comprised 
15% of revenue (2013 - 11%). At December 31, 2014, ten customers comprised 40% of trade accounts receivable (2013 - 45%) 
and one customer comprised 11% of trade accounts receivable (2013 - 12%). At December 31, 2014, approximately 97% 
(2013 – 94%) of trade accounts receivable had been outstanding for less than 90 days.  

The following details the age of outstanding accounts receivable and the related allowance for doubtful accounts: 

 
For the years ended December 31 2014 2013

 $ $
 

Not overdue (outstanding for less than 30 days)  69,981   60,500 

Past due for more than one day but not more than three months  58,220   65,821 

Past due for more than three months but not more than six months  1,017   3,869 

Past due for more than six months  947   1,373 

Total trade accounts receivable  130,165   131,563 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts  (580)  (630)

Net trade accounts receivable  129,585   130,933 

The change in the allowance for doubtful accounts is as follows:  

 
For the years ended December 31 2014 2013

$ $

Balance, beginning of year 
 (630)  (688)

Additional allowance 
 (652)  (491)

Amounts used 
 691   549 

Changes due to changes in foreign exchange rates 
 11   - 

Balance, end of year  (580)  (630)
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D) LIQUIDITY RISK 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due or can do so 
only at excessive cost. The Company manages liquidity risk through management of its capital structure, monitoring and 
reviewing actual and forecasted cash flows and their effect on bank covenants, and maintaining unused credit facilities where 
possible to ensure there are available cash resources to meet the Company’s liquidity needs. The Company can finance any 
future growth through one of, or a combination of, internally generated cash flows, borrowing under existing credit facilities, 
the issuance of debt or the issuance of equity, according to its capital management objectives (Note 28) and subject to 
appropriate market conditions. The expected maturities of the Company’s contractual obligations, including interest, are as 
follows: 

 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. 31
For the years ending 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 23)  101,215  -   -   -   -   101,215 

Income taxes payable (Note 14(c))  5,064  -   -   -   -   5,064 

Operating leases (Note 24(a))  4,248  3,439  2,987  2,641   2,436  15,751 

Capital commitments (Note 24(b))  57,269  -   -   -   -   57,269 

Long-term debt* (Note 26)  23,331  22,850  21,011  348,908   1,042  417,142 

  191,127  26,289  23,998  351,549   3,478  596,441 

 

*Interest payments required on the revolving credit facility (Note 26(a)) are estimated based on an assumed static prime rate of interest. 
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